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Corporate Information (continueq)
NEEH#)
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Financial Highlights
M=

Year ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
B= EE y
—E-—F —ETE
~NA=TH ~NA=+H
LEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFHT FHT
(Restated)
(& =71)
Results E
Revenue Wz
Exhibitions and events REENMEH 122 46,297 34,274
Cultural and entertainment XA K pR 4% 175,325 447,010 510,148
Financing mE 52,622 57,805 31,698
228,069 551,112 576,120
Gross profit EAH 120,960 285,174 383,310
Operating profit R T 56,745 248,208 217,232
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(EE),H#A (5,447) 142,170 106,053

At 30 June
2021

i
—E-—F
AA=1H

HK$'000
TERT

consolidated Statement HEMBMRRE

of Financial Position
Total assets BEMAE 882,122
Total liabilities BEREE (99,205)
Net assets EEFE 782,917

At 30 June
2020

I
—E-FTF
NA=1H
HK$'000
THT

1,157,370
(459,717)
697,653

At 30 June
2019
—E-NF
~NHA=1H
HK$'000
TATT
(Restated)
(#&E7))

1,172,372
(629,674)
542,698
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Chairman’s Statement
EEERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board"”) of directors (“Directors”)
of NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to present the report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2021
(the "Reporting Year”) to all shareholders.

The Group recorded a revenue for the Reporting Year of
approximately HK$228.07 million (2020: approximately
HK$551.11 million), representing a decrease of approximately
58.62% as compared with that for the year ended 30 June
2020 (the “Prior Year”). Loss for the Reporting Year was
approximately HK$5.45 million (2020: profit of approximately
HK$142.17 million), representing a decrease of approximately
103.83% as compared with that for the Prior Year. Total
comprehensive income for the Reporting Year was
approximately HK$46.54 million (2020: approximately
HK$119.06 million), representing a decrease of approximately
60.91% as compared with that for the Prior Year.

The environment continued to be challenging for the Group.
Customer spending remained volatile as the coronavirus
disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic is still an ongoing
issue. The abruptness and variability of COVID-19 has
hindered economic activities in various degrees. The
pandemic prevention measures and social distancing policy
by the government of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") had significant impacts especially on the exhibition
industry. Fewer exhibitions could be held and clients had less
intention to promote their products through events. In
response to the market dynamics, the Group did not organise
any large scale exhibitions during the Reporting Year. If the
situation continues, the Group may be forced to give up the
exhibitions and events business soon.

Looking back, the temporary store closure and lower
customer traffic had caused a profound impact on the
performance of our cultural and entertainment business.
Some of our clients could not overcome the operating losses
and chose to close their stores to stop 10ss.

The Board is hopeful that we are able to leverage our existing
resources to expand our services to clients through both
online and offline channels. However, due to the uncertainties
of COVID-19 pandemic, the development of our e-platform
has been tabled, and may only be resumed after the Group’s
business development being brought back to normal.

BIRR

AARARKHBEEEZRBERAR ((FA
ANEF(EE)e((ESg ) NE2EER
2HNARANEWMB LR (G [ REE/])
BE_Z-_ S A=THLEFE(BRESF
Bl 2HEMEERRAMEEHRE

AREBEBHERFEFENRTZD A
228,070,000 T( — & = T F£: 4
551,110,000/ 7T)  WEE T T F N H

\
=+ BIEFE(EE]) R 458.62% ° IR
& E Y BB 495,450,00078 7T ( Z B T4 ¢
S A#9142,170,00078 7T ) » B & F AR D
#9103.83% - W BEFE M2 mE K A
48 KE 4946,5400008 T( Z T T F: 4
119,060,000 7T ) - £ & & 48 b & 2 &Y
60.91% ©

IRIBH AL B ARG DATTIMKE - 2019
EAR B S % ([COVID-19 ) BB R4 -
BP X HBINATIEE ° COVID-19 B 2R 1E &
L EE R IER T RZE R o
FEAREFE ([HE L) BT ZE &
REMBEE LAY RETERKERTE -
ARENRESRD  MELBBIBHERE
HERMNERITRE - FHEMSERE - KE
EEREFEYERRIMAREES - 4
BREFBE  AEBAHN SN ARERED
KOEENETS ©

EERE - BREEREREDHEMNX
ERIREX W R RIRERFREZE - B
BEFRERRELEE - EEHE L -

EZe72HMERNBREGER - BBK
ERETHREBERRMABELHRS - A
i - R COVID-19R B M iEE R % - A
VETFFREROKHEE  REEAKERE
BERRELERTEERM -
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EREHE 2

The cultural and entertainment business may face headwinds
in the coming years, we will continue to maintain a good
relationship with our NOD Union members and deal with the
economic difficulties together. We believe caring customers'
needs would keep customer loyalty and strengthen our
brand. The Group will keep on improving the operational
efficiency in order to stay strong in this economic downturn.

Due to the uncertainties mentioned above, the management
sees the prospect of the exhibitions and entertainment
businesses not promising in the upcoming period. Next year
will remain challenging to the Group's business. Accordingly,
the Group will be more prudent in managing revenue
sources, hold saving resources as its basic principle and take
stringent cost control measures in order to minimise the
possible risk exposure to the uncertain economic
environment.

Finally, on behalf of the Company, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our
shareholders and business partners for their trust and
continuous support, and to our management and staff for
their commitment and contributions for the Reporting Year.

Deng Zhonglin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 September 2021

AL MR GE S FE O AR RENEF R] BE I R 35
BIPSAEE R E R Y oK BRI R IR
7 AREEQERSE - RABEE - BLFE
F VR SRR 1S B P AR I AN 58 T AP Y am
e AEBEREES HIRRESWE - 1M
ERBETZRBER M REFRE o

MR AT EERE  BEEERARRES R
IREXBRTRN T —HIRL A A 8 - K
A AN R B R FTm kR o L - N&
BHEREERRENR - LEHNERASE
PR B SRENB AR AR AN IR IS 1 - MBS
IRAEAE T BB RSB IRIR T Al BE AR B ©

&g - RABRRARTR - ROBEH R K
EBBHENEEN —BARKSH - R
BEBEMBETIRHREFENNLRER

FERITHAREL
R4 B
_—

B8 —E-—FHhAZ-tNH
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBHRR S

BUSINESS REVIEW KB EE

NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its #E#EEERAER AT ([RAE ) REKB
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is principally engaged AR (4B [HAREH]) FENRSERLEL
in the organisation and sponsorship of exhibitions and REE€ RES) - L2 RIREFE S RIET
events, the operation of cultural and entertainment &ILARIEHERERERE -
comprehensive services platform and provision of loan and

financing services.

Revenue and segment results of the Group for the year AEBWRHZE_EZ_—FA=1THILFE

ended 30 June 2021 (the “Reporting Year”) and for the year ([EEFEE|)REE-_E-_EF,A=1H

ended 30 June 2020 (the “Prior Year”) are setout as follows:  |FFE([EF]) iz ko 2B EE &5 w0
T

For the year ended 30 June
BZEAB=1THILEE

2021 2020
—E-—F T -FTF
HK$' 000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Revenue U=

Exhibitions and events REE KEE 122 46,297
Cultural and entertainment XA K pR g% 175,325 447,010
Financing BE 52,622 57,805
228,069 551,112

Segment profit/(loss) from DEEF(E8)
Exhibitions and events RESMED (31,237) (4,613)
Cultural and entertainment XA K R 4% 77,595 246,977
Financing BhE 48,954 52,254
95,312 294,618

2020/21FF 3 » HREBMERBERAT 7



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

THEAWRE S

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Exhibitions and Events Business

Exhibition industry experienced difficulties in operations due
to the outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19") pandemic. The Group has been enduring
hardships under stringent quarantine control. Under such
prevailing environment, the Group had not launched any
large scale exhibitions during the Reporting Year and has
been under pressure to give up the exhibitions and events
business if the environment remains uncertain. The Group
has disposed of subsidiaries which are engaged in unmanned
retail exhibitions in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
to release the pressure on cash flow and strengthen the
Group's liquidity position.

Revenue from exhibitions and events business has decreased
by approximately HK$46.18 million, or approximately 99.74%,
from approximately HK$46.30 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$0.12 million for the Reporting Year. It
represented 0.05% (2020: 8.40%) of the total revenue.

Cultural and Entertainment Business

The overall cultural and entertainment business performance
was weak after the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The
pandemic prevention measures and social distancing policy
by the PRC government have had significant impact on the
industry. The Group experienced an unprecedented
decrement in our business. We believe that more customers
might close their businesses, or reduce the spending on
updating the software, purchase of new equipment and
promotion events, which would continue to affect our income
source, if the spread of COVID-19 pandemic continued.

BB & (transliterated as “NOD Union Platform” or
“NOD Union") is a core competitive edge of the Group. We
believe that it is important to go through the economic
difficulties with our NOD Union members together.

Revenue from cultural and entertainment business has
decreased by approximately HK$271.68 million, or
approximately 60.78%, from approximately HK$447.01 million
for the Prior Year to approximately HK$175.33 million for the
Reporting Year. It represented 76.88% (2020: 81.11%) of the
total revenue.

REDE (=)

RESREHEK
2019 E ik E S % ([COVID-19 ) Z 15 18 3% &
BEEQITELERNE - AEBRBEBRBRR
EHTERRE - ZERRITERE  AEER
REFEUERPEIMARNREES @ IRHK
BEHRSTHEE  A5BECEBRTRERE
SREDEBHNES - AEBEEHER IR
REAREME((FEDREEAETEE
RESNHBART - LWEHIRSRE RN
gﬁzlxﬁl//lh@é%#/ﬂ °©

REGREDEFNRZTHEFY
46,300,000 7 7T )&, > # 46,180,000 74 7T 3 49
99.74% %= ¥R &5 FF FE 49 120,000 78 7T > E A5 4
Wz #70.05% (ZFZZF : 8.40%) °

MAL R IR BT

X AL R 1R 2% 5 55 5 COVID-19 4% 15 18 3% 18 B

BRI - FREBTEENZIBIHIEREE
&ﬁxﬁ%ﬁ”ﬁ%ﬁ%&éﬁﬂ§°$g
B X TEERAIPTARE /Y E R o ZACOVID-19
BIBREEE  RMIBENEERELZRFLE
¥R EHEM  BENMRERERTH
FEHASH - EREEETZERPIHIAR
IR o

mABEF e RAKRENZOBFED -
PItEE R E T ok B — REZBEER
BHBEFEER -

A I IR 44 5 75 1 U 25 B 25 F 49 447,010,000
7 7T R 4> #9271,680,000 7 7T 8k 49 60.78% &=
HEFE 7175 330,000 7T » H (b B Uz
27688% (ZFE-FF : 81.11%) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EHBHRR AR 2

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Cultural and Entertainment Business (Continued)

Cultural and entertainment comprehensive services platform
is currently divided into the following components:

EWMOE =)

MAERIRGEET (45)
b RIR GRS

EOYIN=!

ARG B0 BT IR -

For the year ended 30 June
BEAA=THILEE

2021 {020]
—B-—F —ZEZFTHF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
Bt EE FTHERT TET
Brand management and related services gnh& & 12 N 48 78 IR 7% i 10,389 19,791
Promotion and consulting services HE R N b AR T Ii 60,373 195,658
Contracting services and entertainment 76 iR 7 [ iR 44 3%
equipment solution R R fii - 95,002
Trading of goods HmE 5 iv 104,563 136,559
175,325 447,010
Notes: BEE
i. Brand management and related services: i mEEE R AERERE

Providing brand management and related services under the brand
names of “PHEBE", “MT", “U.CLUB" and "DrOscar”.

Promotion and consulting services:

Providing product promotion services, systematic entertainment
solution and advisory services, including entertainment management
consulting, event planning, online marketing; and other ad hoc
consultancy services.

Contracting services and entertainment equipment solution:
Providing and supplying customised and thematic entertainment
equipment and software materials integration services to customers.

Trading of goods:
Trading of wine and liquor, e-cigarettes and daily supplies to
entertainment stores and NOD Union members.

LA [PHEBE] * [MT] ~ TU.CLUB] X [DrOscar] =

R BE (o0 B IR AR R AR -

ii.  EEREBHRSE:
RMERBERERY  RAERERRT RNER
W% BREREEEZR EPRE KLE
3 REAE B AR -

ii. FERBRRERBERTE :
A% P fR i e (R T ) I R AR Rk 8 S P
HEBARY -

iv. BmES:
RIARZEFTJE Nse S BV 6 & 8 SR HUF 8 2B

BEFERAFARE

2020/21FF 3 » HREBMERBERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

THEFARR SN2

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Financing Business

With the influence of COVID-19 pandemic, small and medium-
sized companies and individuals have been facing shortage
of cashflow. The Group has adjusted the interest rate range
to attract more customers. The Group has credit policy and
loan approval process to minimise the credit risks.

Revenue from financing business has decreased by
approximately HK$5.19 million, or approximately 8.98%, from
approximately HK$57.81 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$52.62 million for the Reporting Year. It
represented 23.07% (2020: 10.49%) of the total revenue.

The financing business is currently divided into the following
components:

R¥OEA (=)
X COVID-19ZIBEHE » /B RRREA
CHEERS THAER - AREEBER

T@l%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ AEEK ﬁf%ﬁ
RKREFEMREFBEERBRBEERE

BB E TR U ES A & F 4957,810,000 7 TR
A Z’JS190000/%7E_'ZZ’7898%§$&¢$E?’]
52,620,000/ 7T  E h Bz 2 23.07% (=
T —FF 0 10.49%) ©

BMEXRBRD A/ TIER -

For the year ended 30 June
BEAA=THILEE

2021 {020]
—E-—F —T-THF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Credit factoring ZE{RIE i 41,665 37,082
Finance leasing BEME fi 9,317 19,323
Money lending WE jii 1,640 1,400
52,622 57,805
Notes: FiE
i Credit factoring i FERE

Credit factoring allows customers to free up cash tied up in unpaid
invoices. The finance period given to customers ranges from 7 months
to 3 years and the finance services allows customers to release up to
80% invoice value.

iil. Finance leasing
The Group focused on expanding its small and medium-sized leasing
from sale and leaseback business and centering on the cultural and
entertainment customers. The financing period given to customers
ranges from 1.5 to 3 years.

iii. Money lending
Providing pledged and non-pledged money lending to individuals to
maximise customer value. The financing period given to customers
ranges from 6 to 12 months.

FEREBEEFPABLBRRNEREENRS -
RTIEFPHRMESNF7TERAZ3F  MAVER

BEEPAIELZIE0NMEEEE -

ii. MEMAE
AEBEINFREP N UEREAAEER I
SEFRERFE BE - KT RFHBMESRN T
1583F -

iii.  WE

FEARREERRBERREASE,PEER
Rt - T EFPOBERN F6E12EA -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEREMSMRST &)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, the Group has recorded
approximately HK$228.07 million in revenue, representing a
decrease of approximately 58.62% as compared with that in
the Prior Year of approximately HK$551.11 million. Operating
profit for the Reporting Year was approximately HK$56.75
million, representing a decrease of approximately 77.14% as
compared with the operating profit in the Prior Year of
approximately HK$248.21 million. Net loss for the Reporting
Year was approximately HK$5.45 million, representing an
increase of approximately 103.83% as compared with the net
profit in the Prior Year of approximately HK$142.17 million.
The decrease in net profit was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue due to the adverse impact from the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.

The following table sets forth a summary of the performance
of the Group for the Reporting Year with comparative figures
for the Prior Year as follows:

M ER

RREFE - ANEBEES W47 228,070,000
BT 0 8 % F 49551,110,00058 JT 8 D 4
58.62%° EFE 2L & m MO B
56,750,000/ JT + H £ F 7 & & & Fl 4
248,210,000 JT #8 LR A 4977.14% © 3R
FE 7 EERYA5450,0008 7T 0 BEFE
#05 F1 %7 142,170,000 7 TT 186 1149 103.83% © 41
KR > £ B B R COVID-19 & 15 18 2 5y 1~ 7
FEBYRRD

TRBFIFEARNEEFE 2 ZERE 8
AEFHHLEBTMT -

For the year ended 30 June
BZEASB=1THILEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EC-TE
HK$' 000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Revenue e 228,069 551,112
Operating profit 4 e | 56,745 248,208
Operating profit margin (%) HR 5 I R (%) 24.88% 45.04%
Net gain on change in fair value of ERSAREBAYEES 2
contingent consideration payables W F 58 914 97,465
Equity-settled share-based VAR 5 45 B AR 1 1~ 3 A 2
payment expenses - 14,864
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair #&Z A FEFF AEZR (R AFE
value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL") st A#8#% ) 2 & mEEY
(E18) e F 5 (17,976) 8,679
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(&BB), =T (5,447) 142,170

2020/21FF 3 » HREBMERBERAT 1



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EREMMRSN &

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue

The revenue has decreased by approximately HK$323.04
million, or approximately 58.62%, from approximately
HK$551.11 million for the Prior Year to approximately
HK$228.07 million for the Reporting Year. The reduction was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the revenue of cultural
and entertainment segment of approximately HK$271.68
million and revenue of exhibitions and events segment of
approximately HK$46.18 million due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic.

Other Gains and Losses

The other gains and losses has decreased by approximately
HK$19.60 million, or approximately 42.66%, from losses of
approximately HK$45.95 million for the Prior Year to losses of
approximately HK$26.35 million for the Reporting Year.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recognised impairment
losses on goodwill of approximately HK$35.95 million, of
which approximately HK$29.43 million was for Sparkle Mass
Group cash-generating unit and approximately HK$6.52
million was for Fortune Selection Group cash-generating unit,
due to the risk of uncertain developments in the economic
condition.

Many of our customers experienced significant reductions in
revenue due to the economic devastation brought by the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Most of the restaurants and
entertainment stores were temporarily closed for a longer
period than expected. The prospect of income is uncertain in
the following few years.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

The Group's selling expenses has decreased by
approximately HK$11.27 million, or approximately 43.63%,
from approximately HK$25.83 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$14.56 million for the Reporting Year. The
Group’s administrative expenses has decreased by
approximately HK$17.12 million, or approximately 28.15%,
from approximately HK$60.82 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK43.70 million for the Reporting Year. Such
decrease was primarily due to the cost control measures
taken by the Group.

M#OE2)

W % B %= F 49551,110,00078 7T R L 4
323,040,000 % JT 5% #758.62% = ) & F & £
228,070,000 ;Lo Wzm M > E B AR
COVID-19 % BB BB UL MRS F il 7
S D #9271,680,0008 TTIA KB E e K IEE)
7 EPUR 2  #9 46,180,000 7 JT ©

Htthzm R &R

Ho Y ek K B9 18 F 25 6 185 18 49 45,950,000 78
TLIR A #19,600,000 78 TT 3k 4Y 42.66% £ E
FEEE ) 26,350,000 7T ©

RMEFE - AR BN ERNTETE
Bk XEERABEZREBELD
35,950,000 7T+ E A 4929,430,000% 7T B
B Sparkle Mass & B 3R & &= 4 &8 i & &)
6,520,000 7T B KA Fortune Selection 5 E 8
TEEEMN -

MR COVD-19RIEBEBHNLCEZE -
PRI D B P RS E S RIEHIR o KB
DB FE N IR %435 P E B B BA A B S B TR HR
£ o BRAWAR KRB FERRIRIL AR -

HERITHAX

NEE A IHE F S B A 425,830,000 7T
B #911,270,000 78 TT Bk £ 43.63% & 345 F
JE4714,560,0007 7T - AEB 2 THFEZ#H
2= 4 4960,820,000% TT 8 2 49 17,120,000 7%
JC 3k 4928.15% = 3R & F £ 4943,700,0007%8
TC ° BRI A F B A AN S B R AR AT
E I o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEREMSMRST &)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Loss on Financial Assets at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss

The Group’s loss on financial assets at FVTPL has increased
significantly to approximately HK$17.98 million, or
approximately 306.67% for the Reporting Year (2020: gain of
approximately HK$8.70 million), primarily due to an unrealised
loss from an investment in a Hong Kong listed equity security
of approximately HK$13.00 million, as it has been suspended
trading by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 5 May 2021. The fair value was
assessed by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
with reference to the professional valuation carried out by
Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision”), an
independent qualified professional valuer.

Gain on Change in Fair Value of Contingent
Consideration Payables

The Group’s gain on change in fair value of contingent
consideration payables has decreased by approximately
HK$96.56 million, or approximately 99.07%, from
approximately HK$97.47 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$0.91 million for the Reporting Year. The fair
value is measured before the conversion into convertible
notes, it was unrealised gain and has no impact on the cash
flow of the Group.

Operating Profit and Operating Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s operating profit has
decreased by approximately HK$191.46 million, or
approximately 77.14%, from an operating profit of
approximately HK$248.21 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$56.75 million for the Reporting Year. The
Group’s operating profit margin has decreased from
approximately 45.04% for the Prior Year to approximately
24.88% for the Reporting Year. The decrease was mainly due
to the downturn in revenue led by the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs has decreased by approximately
HK$16.93 million, or approximately 44.56%, from
approximately HK$37.99 million for the Prior Year to
approximately HK$21.06 million for the Reporting Year. Such
decrease was mainly due to the early redemption of
corporate bonds during the Reporting Year and less interest
was needed.

MO (2)
BAVEFABRSEZEREEZER

REEZRATEFABRZEMEEZEBRE
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AEB 2z BRNIARBELFEZE 2 KamH
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=
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEBHRRS N #

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Loss for the Year Attributable to the Owners
of the Company

The Group’s loss for the year attributable to the owners of
the Company has increased by approximately HK$137.92
million, or approximately 100.60%, from profit of
approximately HK$137.10 million for the Prior Year to loss of
approximately HK$0.82 million for the Reporting Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Significant investments in terms of market
value as at 30 June 2021 and 2020

Name of stock
listed on the
Stock Exchange

REREm 2 RE AR

HSBC Holdings plc
(stock code: 0005)

ELERERAR
(BRfn 5% - 0005)

China U-Ton Future
Space Industrial Group
Holdings Limited
(“China U-Ton")
(stock code: 6168)

FRERAREHESE
SERRBERAR
((hEEE))
(BRAARER - 6168)

Number of
units held
asat

30 June
2021

Carrying
amount

as at

30 June

2021

Brief description of
the business

R
—EC--&
i  A~A=tH
ES3 PN EUHAE ZRAEE
HK$'000
TET
Banking services 5,200 188
RITRRS
Provision of design, 43,315,000 17,003
deployment and
maintenance of
optical fibers services,
other communication
network services,

environmentally
intelligent technical
products and services,
and money lending
services

RERBRE - HHRR
HeERTS - EfbRA
BIRRE  RRERE
RiE R RREUR
ER

* The Stock Exchange has suspended the trading of China U-Ton’s
shares since 5 May 2021. The fair value as at 30 June 2021 was
assessed by the Directors with reference to the professional valuation
carried out by Peak Vision.

MO ()
RRARFEREABEFESE

ZAN/N

AR ARIEAEE 2 FEERRESF

4 A #7 137,100,000 7% 7T 18 A1 49 137,920,000
78 7T 40 100.60% = ¥ & F B3 1R 49 820,000
BT

EX#E

R-B-—FR-F_FFEAA=T
BRmENS ZEARE

Fair value
asat

30 June
2021

i

—E--F
~A=tA
2OV
HK$'000
TAT

233

*

Percentage
to total Realised  Unrealised Dividend
assets loss  gain/(loss) received
value of for the for the for the
the Group year year year
asat ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2021 2021 2021
BE
EAKER Bz —BI-f
—E-—F C—B--%& ARA=tH
~A=tA KRA=tH LEE
BEAEZ LEE 2 WE
Bt C2BEEER BRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT TET
0.03% - 45 6
- (3,463) (12,995) =

MR- T - —FRAABEREEPEERN
BHESE R-E-_—F XA=TBZAFES
B E 2 E 5 (Peak Vision) 1T 2 HEGEE T
B -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEREFMRST &)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Significant investments in terms of market
value as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 (Continued)

Number of Carrying

EX#E®E @)

R-ZB--ER-_ZF-TFAA=T
BRmEMS 2ERRE @)

Percentage
to total Realised Unrealised Dividend
assets gain/(10ss) gain/(loss) received
value of for the for the for the

units held amount Fair value the Group year year year

Name of stock asat asat
listed on the Brief description of 30 June 30 June
Stock Exchange the business

HK$'000

st —
7870

HSBC Holdings plc Banking services 5,200 312
(stock code: 0005)
ELERBRAR IR
(Rt 5% : 0005)
China U-Ton Provision of design, 85,130,000 17,754
(stock code: 6168) deployment and
maintenance of
optical fibers services,
other communication
network services,

environmentally
intelligent technical
products and services,
and money lending
services

FEER RERER  HHR

(BRAARER - 6168) KRR - EtbBa

PBERY  RRE
BE R IR ARG DA
RAERS

The investment in listed securities is for short to medium
term trading purpose. The Group has disposed of 41,815,000
shares of China U-Ton before its suspension of trading and
plans to dispose of the remaining shares after its resumption
of trading. Save for the listed securities listed above, the
Company has no plan for other significant investments in the
near future.

asat asat ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

e )

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000

TRL TET BT
188 0.02% (0.4) 124 -
25,539 2.21% 287 (7,785) -

IR ERENATRPEEENMEDL -
REED A BEBEMRE L 41,815,000
B EEERG - WrrSIEHEREZ LS4
TR o Br Bl ETRREHIN - RAREEE
REAEREMERIEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEREMSMRST &)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$569.59 million (2020:
approximately HK$692.42 million) and approximately
HK$95.78 million (2020: approximately HK$447.97 million),
respectively, while the current ratio was about 5.95 times
(2020: about 1.55 times).

As at 30 June 2021, the Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$69.06 million (2020:
approximately HK$137.43 million). The cash and cash
equivalents of the Group as at 30 June 2021 was mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Renminbi
(“RMB").

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified as financial
assets at FVTPL with carrying amount of approximately
HK$233,000 are placed in margin accounts of a regulated
securities broker. No margin facility was utilised as at 30 June
2021.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

The Group had no material capital commitments contracted
but not provided as at 30 June 2021 (2020: approximately
HK$20.40 million).

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2021, the Company’s issued share capital was
approximately HK$3.71 million (2020: approximately HK$3.04
million) with 1,855,903,277 (2020: 1,521,873,223) ordinary
shares of HK$0.002 each in issue. The increase in the number
of issued shares was primarily due to (i) the issuance of
292,500,000 ordinary shares under general mandate through
a placing agent to not less than six independent placees at
HK$0.13 per placing share pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement dated 24 July 2020; and
(i) the issuance of 41,530,054 ordinary shares for the exercise
of the conversion rights attached to the third convertible
notes with principal amount of HK$76 million in relation to the
acquisition of Cheer Sino Investment Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries.

nDER  MERBRRBEFLER

R-ZZE-—FA=+8 AEBMRPHEE
KOmE) & &A% D Bl B %569,590,0007%8 7T
(ZZ =T 4 #9692,420,0005 7T ) & 4
95,780,000 t( =— & = T F: 4
447,970,000 7T ) + MR B L E & 495.951%
(ZEZZFF : 49155/F) -

RZEBE-_—FXA=Z+H AEBZEEN
RE&SEER %5 469,060008 T (=F
T4 49137,430,0008C) c R -FT — —
FRNA=ZTH AEEzRe A SEEE
BEEUBLTEBR]) RARBE(TAR%]
FHE °

DRREATEFABREZEREEZEE
F 2 iR RERE & (AREE4) 233,000 7T) B2
FRR—HKEMENEFLLAZREERR
PR -R-_ZE-_—FA=1+8 RELE
BERAEHA -

HAREE

mig:_i&:gigiﬁﬂz+a,$
SE Y EMEARARSE -

BAESE

RZZE-_—FA=1+8 KEEITEDE]
WERBEZEAEARE(ZTE_TF
#920,400,0007T) °

BEARERE

RZEBE-—FXA=+H AQRAIBETE
R E AB3710008 t( ZE_FF: 4
3,040,000 7T ) » H A 2 #771,855,903,277
AR (ZZZF4F : 1,521,873,223[%) R EE
0.0028 Lz L@ - BEITIRMDE B 10
FTER()EEREE-—REERERSRAS
E-EFL AT NENRER RGN RIE
% IREREERD0.13B T ERE T
7 7 % 18 3L A R A % 17 292,500,000 A% E i
IR Rt EBKEESREERBRAT
N EH B AR M7 A% £ §76,000,000 7%
TL.2 88 = AT A IR SR IR PR A S IR T B 1T
41,530,054 [i% 3@ A% ek o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

THEFRR S 2

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL RESOURCES (Continued)

Borrowings

In the foreseeable future, the Group expects to fund its
capital expenditures, working capital and other capital
requirements from the internal resources and other financing
means which the Company may from time to time consider
appropriate. As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s borrowings was
approximately HK$66.77 million (2020: approximately
HK$312.27 million).

nBBER MERBERBEEER

(%)
CEAN
RAIFBRANR - AEBEH BN LERK

KRB AIRETERAEE 2 & 7 =
NEEATH - BEESREMELRT K-
RIZ-—FXA=1+H AEEZ{ERE
#4966,770,0008% T( — T — T F: #
312,270,000 7T) °

As at 30 June
RARA=+H
2021 2020
:%: —£|E — 3 — E
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Borrowings BN
Within 1 year —&F R 65,813 306,702
Over 1 year and within 5 years —FUERFUR 952 5,566
Total st 66,765 312,268

The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through maintaining the equity and
debt in a balanced position. As at 30 June 2021, the
borrowings of approximately HK$66.77 million were
unsecured and fixed rate interest bearing debt securities.

The gearing ratio is the ratio of total debt divided by total
assets. As at 30 June 2021, the gearing ratio was 7.57% (2020:
26.98%).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 30 June 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in Note 38, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
or joint ventures during the Reporting Year.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Year (2020: HKS$Nil).

2020/21F 3R o #

AEBERAEER  UREASEFELE
Z BT - R RS IR AR R E AR
*ftﬂx%@#& b_/\_?_ E/\H +E|
#166,770,0007% 7T 2 {8 3 = M K E E 7
Kt BEBES °

BERBBELREEBEBRAEEMARE L
R -RN-_TB-—FXNA=TH EXAEK

N —=

T%7W%LJ_?$ 26.98%) °
BEXBREXNBTLFEZRREKEE

MNZEZ_—F A= ‘f‘ H - Iﬂﬁjﬂﬁﬁi
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

THEFARR SN2

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has no significant event after the end of the
Reporting Year up to the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has forced the Group to
review and recalibrate our development strategies and
planning based on the assessments on the actual and
potential impacts of the pandemic.

As COVID-19 pandemic is still an ongoing issue, the Company
believes that the Group’s business environment will continue
to be challenging under the stress of the pandemic
prevention and control measures in the short to medium
term, especially in the exhibitions and events industry.
However, as more people joined COVID-19 vaccination
programme, the Company expects the revenue will be
improved after COVID-19 is under control in the long term.

Looking ahead into the coming year, the Group will continue
to closely monitor the development of COVID-19 pandemic
and take all possible and reasonable measures to mitigate
the effect on the Group’s operation.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES IN THE PAST
TWELVE MONTHS

Save as disclosed below, there was no other equity fund
raising activity of the Company during the last 12 months
prior to the date of this annual report:

REMEER
RFEFELEEHREEAFHRAY  £&%
B I TR EAREIE -

KRB RAIR

COVID-19 % BB B R AL B MERF KA
[ERBNERMEEYE2ENET AT
RERE AR E o

A COVID-19Z B INARITBE - EhEHD

P R SIS E AT » AARAEALE
WERIRBEHEET MRS - CURERE
BITERE - AM BEEFEZALHA
COVID-19 % i@ st &l - A A FE Hilk e 1
A COVID-19 KRR IR 18 BTk ©

REWRF - NEBGEETY)EHR COVID-19
RISMEE - WERAIGERR— IR R AR
BRI AR E S EERNTE

BET-MERAZKRREH

BT XWEEIN - ARRNAEIR B HA
T EAMEEMRAEEES

Date of Approximate Intended use of Actual use
announcements Fund raising activity  net proceeds proceeds of proceeds
=R KEED BARERETFE RENERTAR FrisEER
A&
24 July 2020 and Placing of ordinary HK$37.16 million () Approximately 75% towards  Fully used as
20 August 2020 shares the repayment of certain intended
debts; and
(i) Remaining amount towards
general working capital of
the Group
“TTFLA feE L imk 37,160,000 T () W7%AREERETER: 2EAERTE
_-I-E B & )54 R
_— ? —_— 7 ﬂz
NAZ+H (i) AEREAEE —REE
-k
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEREMSMRST &)

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES IN THE PAST
TWELVE MONTHS (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, a total of 292,500,000 ordinary
shares have been issued under general mandate through a
placing agent to not less than six independent placees at
HK$0.13 per placing share pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the placing agreement dated 24 July 2020.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group manages or operates its business in Hong Kong
and the PRC and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to
United States dollars ("US$”) and RMB. The Group has no
significant direct exposure to foreign currencies as most of
the commercial transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency same as the functional currency
of each entity of the Group and has not employed any
financial instruments for hedging purpose.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had a total of 97 full-time
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC (2020: 154 full-time
employees). The remuneration payable to its employees
included salaries, discretionary bonus and commissions.
Remuneration packages were generally structured according
to market situations and individual performance. Apart from
the mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement
benefits, the Group also provided medical benefits and
trainings to its employees. The Company has also adopted a
share option scheme as incentive to eligible employees.

Furthermore, the remuneration committee of the Board will
review and give recommendations to the Board as to the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors and senior management of the Group.

BETZEAZKETE =)

RIBEEE - RERIEE— R RIRE DS
A-T-TELA-TRANEEBEER
RAGH - RGBT ERR ) 0.135 A B
PO NB B AR A 2174 292,500,000
B AR o

&1 BE W, B2

AEBRNEERTEERREELER - I
AXAEERELNIMNERR - TEEXT
TEZRDMAREERH BARARSHEEHER
7 BERAEDNNERNEEEEREE
BEHRREzESE AREYEEREHE
RINER - MU ERBE AT AEY
MR

& 5 X il B 3%

RZZE-—FA=+H AE@MRAEER
FREBIIZEHEEB(ZZE_ZF : 154
HEBEE) BN EEZHFHERTHS -
BIBIEAL MRS - HFH AR —RBET LKL
BARBET - BRoaaflIMEAES EATRIK
BRSNS - NEBI AR BIREEERFI RS
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BB Z 2R -
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFRCZEEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Deng Zhonglin (“Mr. Deng"), aged 47, was appointed as
an executive Director on 14 October 2016. Mr. Deng is
currently the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company and is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”). Mr. Deng
holds directorships in several subsidiaries within the Group
including f@imE @ & E ORYI) R A A] (transliterated as
Furuida Financial Leasing (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.) and _E/&5F 15
¥ RIEAE R A A (transliterated as Shanghai Shouxin
Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.), etc.

Mr. Deng has over 21 years of experience in corporate
management and strategic planning. He is familiar with the
exhibition industry and the operation of advertising business.
Mr. Deng graduated from Shenzhen University in 1995. From
1999 to 2003, Mr. Deng served as an assistant to the general
manager of /&8 & A fin & B R 2 Al (transliterated as
Shanghai Wanzhou Shipping Co., Ltd.). From 2004 to 2009, he
was the managing director of 7k & /& i /& & & R A 7
(transliterated as Ever Maru Shipping Co., Ltd.). From 2010 to
2017, he served as the general manager of -8 REEE
% B R A & (transliterated as Shanghai Public Advertising
Communications Co., Ltd.), which was mainly engaged in
advertising, display and exhibition services as well as
conference services.

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan (“Mr. Wong"), aged 47, was appointed
as an executive Director on 15 July 2020. Mr. Wong graduated
from the University of Sunderland with a bachelor’s degree in
accounting and finance. Mr. Wong had been working with
various accounting firms and commercial companies and has
over 21 years of experience in merger and acquisitions,
financial management, taxation, audit and non-audit services.

Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director
of Huisheng International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1340)
and Deson Construction International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8268), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive
director of Temir Corp. (stock code: TMRR) since 15 July 2019,
the issued shares of which is traded on the OTC Securities
Marketplace in the United States of America.
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HITES

BB EE((BEE]D) 475 RZF—RX
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{E - B ER—NMNAEFEERNRIIAE -
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

ERZEEHE»)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of TUS
International Limited (stock code: 872) from 2 September
2014 to 17 July 2020, the issued shares of which is listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-
executive director of Tech Pro Technology Development
Limited (stock code: 3823) from 24 May 2019 to 2 March 2020
and Bolina Holding Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1190) from 7 July
2016 to 27 March 2017, the issued shares of which had been
formerly listed on the Stock Exchange.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Huang Chian Sandy (“Ms. Huang"), aged 49, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 15 July 2020. Ms.
Huang graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently
known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a
diploma in design. Ms. Huang has over 21 years of experience
in managing real estate agency business and real estate
credit fund in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Ms. Huang has been the founder of &2 EEMEZ AR A
A] (transliterated as Shanghai Mengteng Real Estate Information
Company Limited) since December 2018. She served as the
chief executive officer and the regional director of & &l#h
B b EE 45 40 35 R B R A &) (transliterated as Keller Williams
Greater Shanghai Company Limited) from July 2016 to
November 2018. She also founded and served as the chief
executive officerof LB R EFREET B ABHA AR A A
(transliterated as Yida Investments Management &
Consultancy (Shanghai) Company Limited) , and served as the
chief investment officer of BRJ Asset Management Limited
from August 2011 to July 2016. She also served as the chief
operating officerof E 8 R R E R E 5 B R 2 7
(transliterated as Carnaby (Shanghai) Company Limited) from
July 2009 to July 2011. From October 2006 to November 2008,
Ms. Huang served as the general manager of 8 % E i
ER A BN AR AR (transliterated as Shanghai Ruifeng Real
Estate Investment Consultants Company Limited). From
December 2002 to October 2006, Ms. Huang founded and
served as the general manager of /B ISEREBERA
R 2 &) (transliterated as Bonity Property Group (Shanghai)
Limited).
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

ERZEEHE»)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Hung Fai (“Mr. Choi"), aged 36, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 17 July 2015. Mr.
Choi is a member of each of the audit committee of the
Board (the “Audit Committee”) and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Choi has over 12 years of experience in
securities trading, fund raising activities, corporate finance
and project investments. Mr. Choi possesses knowledge in
financial analysis, corporate finance, corporate valuation and
corporate governance. Mr. Choi graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, and obtained a master of finance degree in
corporate finance from the University of New South Wales in
Australia.

Mr. Choi is currently the founder and managing director of
Draco Capital Limited and also a responsible officer for Type
6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity of Draco
Capital Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Choi is
principally responsible for advising on corporate finance
activities, pre-initial public offerings, merger & acquisitions,
fund raising activities and corporate restructurings for private
and public companies in the PRC, Malaysia and Hong Kong.
Mr. Choi is also an independent director of WeTrade Group
Inc. (stock code: WETG) since October 2020, the issued
shares of which are traded on the OTC Securities Marketplace
in the United States of America.

Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (“Mr. Tsang"), aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 9 March 2017. Mr.
Tsang is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Tsang has over
26 years of experience in finance, accounting and auditing.
Mr. Tsang obtained a professional diploma in accountancy
from Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1987 and a master
of professional accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2000. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(FCPA) and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants (FCCA).
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

ERZEEHE»)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Tsang was a chief financial officer of Xin Dau Ji
Membership Management Limited from July 2015 to
September 2019. He was an independent non-executive
director of VBG International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8365) from
May 2017 to December 2017. He was an independent non-
executive director of ICube Technology Holdings Limited
(currently known as Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 139) from November 2014 to July 2016. He was
an independent non-executive director of Unity Investments
Holdings Limited (currently known as Harbour Digital Asset
Capital Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 913) from September 2004 to
October 2014. He was an executive director from August
2008 to December 2011 of Noble Jewelry Holdings Limited
(currently known as Central Development Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 475).

Dr. Wong Kong Tin, s (“Dr. Wong"), aged 54, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 13 December
2017. Dr. Wong is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. He has over 28 years of
practical experience in the legal fields of cross-border
investment in Greater China, financing, corporate acquisition,
merger, listing, real estate project development, e-commerce,
brand management, corporate governance, arbitration
mediation, and media and public administration.

Dr. Wong holds an LLB and LLM from Peking University,
postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong Law from
The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom, and LLD in constitutional and administrative law
from Renmin University of China. He is also an associate of
each of Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators, a Hong Kong registered financial
planner, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an
accredited general mediator of the Hong Kong Mediation
Accreditation Association Limited, a founding member of The
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association,
and an associate of The Hong Kong Association of Financial
Advisors Limited.

2020/215FF3R o

EEg %)

BIFHTEE (&)

MELN _E-—RAF+AE_T—-NFNA
EAFNGeEEEBAR AR ZWIELHEE -
BN —_E—+FRAE-_ZE—+tF+_AE
TR RERIERAR AR (B FTGEM £

NE R RSE 8365 B FEMITE
E R _T—NF+—AZE_T— X Ft
AEATEMEFRESEERRARCGRE
ARIEEBIERAR AR BRFERLED
ANalc BRDHREE  139) 2B IERITESE ©
BR-_ZEEMEANAE -_T—NE+AEE
A REEBRERAFCAEEERTESE
EARERART  BRFAER ETAR - I&H
REE 9B 2B IERITEE  BR=ZZZT
NENAE-Z——F+ - AEFTE i%iﬂifg
ERABERARCIEATERIERERA
BT ER EH AR RO 475)2#3%
1TES -

mIRETcFH+([EBL]) 5458 B
T+ F+ A+ =B EZTABIIEHR
TEF BB T AFNEESEERELST
Eg&h%?\ EKE HRAPEMRE
BIRE  BE EWRE- A LT B
i’@% RER BTEG mEEE ¥
CREGARE  BERARTREEES

E./D

TE ¥ A5 180 28 F B 7548 Bp o
FEEITORBEIERAELAEE LB
(LLB) ~ yREME+E47(LLM) - HE S BETE

e RKE (R REEER)MFRERRT
BARKEFZEZ2ETBEZEE 24
(LLD) - BN AEEET THEeE 8 - &8

FP%&TEAQ:’ MR EIRD - &
BEFEEERTE  FEAREREIER
Aﬁﬁﬁ AR A HAEE - BB %_L#%ﬂ
ﬂé%%mé@@% REBGHERHS

= .

ABREEEZEREBRLAA 23



Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

ERZEEHE»)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Wong's current community services include: the chairman
of the Hong Kong Liquor Licensing Board, the chairperson of
the Appeal Panel under the Property Management Service
Ordinance, the vice chairman of the Association of Hong
Kong Professionals, a member of the Solicitors Disciplinary
Tribunal Panel, a member of each of the Finance Committee
and Management Committee of Hong Kong News-Expo and
an executive committee member of the Basic Law Institute
Limited. He was also an observer of Independent Police
Complaints Council from September 2007 to August 2015, a
member of the panel to the Appeal Board (Hotel and
Guesthouse Accommodation), a member of the panel to the
Appeal Board (Bedspace Apartments), a member of the panel
to the Appeal Board (Clubs (Safety of Premises)) from April
2012 to April 2018 and a member of the Panel of Adjudicators
of the Obscene Articles Tribunal from August 2010 to August
2019.

Dr. Wong currently serves as the vice chairman of the Greater
China Legal Affairs Committee and the Community Relations
Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong. Dr. Wong is also
a member of the tenth to twelfth Shanghai Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a
member of the Chinese Association of Hong Kong and Macau
Studies, a member of the Hong Kong Basic Law and Macau
Basic Law Research Association, a member of Expert
Committee of the China (Guangdong) Free Trade Zone in
Hengaing New Area and an Arbitrator of Court of Arbitration
for Labour and Personal Dispute, Nansha Area, Guangdong
Free Trade Zone.

Dr. Wong also serves as an arbitrator of Arbitration
commission in Shenzhen, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Zhuhai,
Huizhou, Liuzhou, Zhengzhou, Hohhot, Hainan, Chengde,
Nanchang, Nanning, Taiyuan, Shenyang and Guiyang.

Dr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director
of Times Neighborhood Holdings Limited (stock code: 9928).
From June 2010 to July 2014, Dr. Wong served as an
independent non-executive director of Great Wall Technology
Company Limited (original stock code: 74) which was
privatised and automatically delisted from the Stock Exchange
inJuly 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Qiu Peiyuan (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 October 2018. Mr.
Qiu graduated from the Biology Department, Nankai
University with a bachelor of science degree in biology in
1986, from the Faculty of Science, The University of Hong
Kong with a master degree in bioscience in 1998, and from
the Business School of the University of Western Ontario,
Canada with a master degree in business administration in
2003. Mr. Qiu obtained chartered financial analyst (CFA),
Canadian certificated financial planner (CFP), Canadian fund
company partner, director and senior management, and
Canadian securities qualifications.

Following his graduation, Mr. Qiu joined the Bank of Nova
Scotia as a senior analyst. Mr. Qiu joined the T. Rowe Price
Group from 2008 to 2011 as vice president, Asia. Mr. Qiu
joined Huabao Trust Co., Limited from 2011 to 2015 as
general manager of the international business department.
Mr. Qiu joined Ping An Trust Co., Limited from 2015 to June
2019 as president of overseas investment department and
senior managing director, responsible for establishing
overseas investment department and determining its
overseas investment strategies and plans. Mr. Qiu also
served as a non-executive director of China Health Group
Limited (stock code: 673) from 4 June 2018 to 2 September
2019. Mr. Qiu currently serves as a chief executive officer of
First Ocean Financial Holdings Co., Limited since 16 August
2019. Mr. Qiu is an executive director of Chong Kin Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1609) since 1 February 2021.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHRE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”)
presents its report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 (the “Reporting
Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during
the Reporting Year and the financial key performance
indicators affecting its results and financial position are set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” (“MD&A") of this annual report.

The information about a fair review of, and an indication of
likely future development in the Group's business is set out in
the MD&A of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the MD&A of this annual report under
the sections headed “Significant Investments” and “Event
after the Reporting Period”, there are no important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
Reporting Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The results and business operations of the Group may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The
followings are the major risks and uncertainties currently
faced or anticipated by the Group, and it is not meant to be
exhaustive. There may be other risks and uncertainties which
are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but turn out to be material in the future.

Operation Risk

During the Reporting Year, the outbreak of the coronavirus
disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic has affected many
businesses. Based on the current situation and unpredictable
circumstances, the Directors consider the contingency
measures implemented by the government will have short-
term adverse impact on the Group’s operations and it could
be materially different from the aforesaid expectation
depending on how the situation evolves.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEEHRE D)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Operation Risk (Continued)

The Group's financing business, including credit factoring,
finance leasing and money lending, needs to renew the
licences periodically for the operations. The Group might face
non-compliance risk and risk of losing such licences.

The Group has internal control policy and procedures for staff
to follow and has a team to monitor and update the rules and
regulatory requirements.

The Group’s business and profitability growth during the
Reporting Year was affected by the increase in competition in
the industry and the volatility and uncertainty of the macro-
economic conditions in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). The Group is expected to continue to be
affected by the above factors.

Financial Risk

The details of financial risk management objectives and
practices of the Group are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. There may be
other risks and uncertainties in addition to those mentioned
above which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

PRC Economic, Political and Legal Risk

The Group’s business operations are mainly conducted in the
PRC and therefore significantly affected by the economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The PRC
government may implement various measures to encourage
economic growth, some of the measures may have a
negative effect on the Group.

The Group has a team to monitor the development in the PRC
to enable the Group to make necessary adjustments to its
business strategies. Any material changes that could impact
the Group significantly will be reported to the Board for
actions.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-
friendly corporation that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact
on the environment by reducing electricity consumption and
encouraging recycling of office supplies and double-sided
printing. For further details, please refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report set out on pages 60 to 91 of
this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEEHRE @

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board and the management,
the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
business and operation during the Reporting Year.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

The Group’s management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees’ benefits have contributed to
building good employee relations and employee retention for
the Group. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages commensurate with industry practice, provides
various fringe benefits to employees and internal training
appropriate to individual needs. The management regularly
reviews its employees’ remuneration packages to ensure they
are up to prevailing market standard. The Group has
established long-term business relationships with its major
suppliers and customers. The Group will endeavour to maintain
its established relationships with these existing suppliers and
customers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 101 to 102 of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Reporting Year (2020: HK$Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, the objective of
which is to allow shareholders of the Company to participate in
the Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves to
sustain the Group's future growth. The declaration, form,
frequency and amount of dividend paid by the Company must
be in accordance with applicable laws and the relevant
provisions of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”). In deciding whether to declare
any dividend, the Board will take into account a number of
factors, including the financial results, the distributable
reserves, the operations and liquidity requirements, and the
current and future development plans of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy of the Company as
appropriate from time to time.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEEHRE D)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 240
of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

The total borrowings of the Group (including debentures) as
at 30 June 2021 amounted to approximately HK$66.77 million
(30 June 2020: approximately HK$312.27 million). Details of
borrowings is set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Reporting Year are set out in Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the Reporting Year are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
mcorporated which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during
the Reporting Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the Reporting Year are set out in Note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group, respectively.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEEHRE @

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the Company'’s distributable reserves as at 30 June
2021 are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable donations was made by the Group during the
Reporting Year (2020: HK$NIil).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and senior officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against them arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors throughout the Reporting Year and as at the date of
approval of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Year, the revenue generated from the
Group'’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
19.32% (2020: approximately 18.31%) of the Group’s total
revenue and the revenue from the largest customer included
therein accounted for approximately 6.59% (2020:
approximately 4.92%) of the Group's total revenue.

During the Reporting Year, the fees paid to the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 90.64% (2020:
approximately 36.61%) of the Group’s cost of sales and the
supplies from the largest supplier included therein accounted
for approximately 77.44% (2020: approximately 10.33%) of the
Group's cost of sales .

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers for the Reporting
Year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEEHRE D)

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Year and
up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman)
(Appointed as Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ")
on 31 May 2021)
Mr. Xu Feng (CEO)
(Resigned on 31 May 2021)
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan
(Appointed on 15 July 2020)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy (Appointed on 15 July 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Hung Fai
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki

Dr. Wong Kong Tin, jp
Mr. Qiu Peiyuan

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting ("AGM") of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation. Mr. Deng Zhonglin, Ms. Huang Chian
Sandy and Mr. Tsang Wing Ki will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company
has received an annual confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director confirming his independence. The
Company has assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and considers that for the Reporting
Year, all of them were independent based on the
independence criteria in accordance with the requirements in
the Listing Rules, their non-involvement in the daily operation
and management of the Company, and the absence of any
relationships which will interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgments.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for those disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this Report of the Directors, at no time during the
Reporting Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for the re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has or is proposed to have a service contract with the
Company not determinable by the Company within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board after
considering the recommendations from the remuneration
committee of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”)
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities, individual
performance and the results of the Group. Such emoluments
are subject to the shareholders’ approval at the AGM.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the Reporting
Year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director of the Company or any entity connected
with the Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the Reporting Year, the Board is not aware of any
business or interests of the Directors and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interests
which any such person had or might have with the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
usual course of business are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related
party transactions constitutes a connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules which is required to be
disclosed.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the
Company did not enter into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company during
the Reporting Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected participants for their contributions to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the
Company on 18 October 2013 (the “Adoption Date”).

Summary of Terms
(i) Purpose and participants

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the
Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include the following classes of participants:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time
including any executive Directors but excluding
any non-executive Director) of the Company, any
of the subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested
Entity”) in which the Group holds an equity
interest;

(b)  any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of
the subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Ssummary of Terms (Continuead)

)

34

Purpose and participants (Continued)

©

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Group or any member of any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the growth of the Group, and, for
the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the
options may be granted to any company wholly-
owned by one or more persons belonging to any
of the above classes of participants.

The eligibility of any of the above classes of participants
to the grant of any option shall be determined by the
Directors from time to time on the basis of the Directors’
opinion as to his/her/its contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.
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(i)

Total number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital (the “Issued
Share Capital”) of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for
this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Group) to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group as may from time to time
be adopted by the Company as permitted under the
Listing Rules initially must not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of the Issued Share Capital as at the time dealings in the
shares first commence on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (and thereafter, if refreshed, shall not exceed
10% of the Issued Share Capital as at the date of
approval of the refreshed limit by the shareholders).
After the refreshment of the limit of the Share Option
Scheme with the approval of the shareholders on 10
May 2019, the maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of the refreshed limit of
146,290,000 options (being 10% of the Issued Share
Capital on 10 May 2019) together with all outstanding
options as at the date of this annual report carrying the
right to subscribe for 26,630,000 shares is 172,920,000
shares, representing approximately 9.32% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting with such participant and his
associates abstaining from voting.
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(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

36

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon the exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the Issued Share Capital
for the time being (the “Individual Limit"). Any further
grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant must be separately approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting of the Company with
such grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the option subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before being exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and
stated in the offer of the grant of options to an eligible
participant, there is no minimum period required under
the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
the period within which payments must be paid

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon receipt by
the Company of the payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 and signed acceptance of offer by the eligible
participant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Ssummary of Terms (Continuead)
(vii) Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price per share under the Share Option
Scheme will be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

(viii) Subject to any earlier termination in accordance with its
rules, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on 18 October 2013.

On 1June 2018 (the "Date of Grant”), the Company granted
an aggregate of 100,000,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme, at an exercise price of HK$1.89 per share.
The exercise price was the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$1.85 per share on the Date of Grant; (ii) the average
closing price of HK$1.89 per share for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant. The closing price
per share immediately before the Date of Grant was HK$1.87.
The share options granted to each grantee shall vest
conditional upon the fulfilment of certain performance targets
relating to the Group in accordance with the following
schedule:

Vesting Date
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Percentage of the Share
options vested
on the Vesting Date

RERBH
FEAH EEENERENES L
1June 2018 —ZE-N\FRH—H 0%
31 December 2018 - N\F+—_A=+—H 25%
30 June 2019 —ZET—hFEXA=TH 25% (i.e. up to 50% in total)

31 December 2019

30 June 2020

—E-AFT=A=t-8

—E-EFRNA=1H

25% (BN 2% BB EERI 50%)
25% (i.e. up to 75% in total)
25% (BNZE % RBEEERI75%)
25% (i.e. up to 100% in total)
25% (BN 2 % R B EEH) 100%)
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During the Reporting Year, no share option has been granted  REREFE » HEEBIEEIRET SR B ER
under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the share options — # - R IFEE R EKR L 2 EREN —-Z
granted under the Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2021 Z——EXA=+tRHZFBEWET :

are as follows:

Options
Options Options Options  cancelled/ Options
outstanding granted exercised lapsed outstanding
Exercise asat duringthe duringthe  during the as at
Category of Date of price  Exercise 1 July Reporting Reporting Reporting 30 June
participants grant per share  period 2020 Year Year Year 2021

® RBEFE W-FT=--F

—F_%F i3 BiE#/ A~A=TH

tA-AZ BEFE REEFE BAMZ ZRITE

SRER BRITEE RITEBRE RHZBRE TEZBRE B B
(HKS)

(%)

Executive Directors
Mr. Deng Zhonglin 1June 2018 1.89 31 December 2018 to 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
31 May 2028
HTES
BB A T \&F —E-)\E
~A—H +=ZR=+—H=%
ZZN\EF
RA=1+—H
Mr. Xu Feng 1June 2018 189 31December 2018 to 9,680,000 - - 9,680,000 -
(Resigned on 31 May 2021) 31 May 2028
FEEE(RZT —T-N\F —T-)N\F
AAZ+—HEH) ~A—A +-A=t—R%
ZZoNE
AA=+—H
21,680,000 - - 9,680,000 12,000,000
Employees 1June 2018 1.89 31 December 2018 to 58,740,000 - - 44,110,000 14,630,000
31 May 2028
&8 —T—)\F ZE-N\F
NA—H +TZR=t+—HZ
—TIN\E
HA=+—H
Total @t 80,420,000 - - 53,790,000 26,630,000

The share options, once vested, shall be exercisable withina HERZE - BEEBEEN B XKL B B 10F 5
period of 10 years from the Date of Grant. Except for the  fTT{E o Br ERFIFIEFIN - BIEEEAREST
Directors listed in the table above, none of the grantees ZITE NZ AKX AR/KREEBZBEAL -
under the Share Option Scheme is a connected person of the

Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Ssummary of Terms (Continuead)

The weighted average fair value for each granted share
option for the Reporting Year was HK$0.79, which was
determined by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
significant inputs into the model included share price of
HK$1.85 at the Date of Grant, exercise price of HK$1.89,
volatility of 33.02%, dividend yield of 0.0%, an expected share
option life of 10 years and an annual risk-free interest rate of
2.21%. The expected volatility is determined by calculating
the historical volatility of the share price of listed companies
with similar business as the Group. The expected dividend
yield is determined with reference to historical dividend and
share price of the Company. No amortisation of Share options
(2020: approximately HK$14.86 million) was recognised as
staff costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Convertible Notes

The Company issued the third tranche of zero coupon
convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) at a par value
of HK$76.00 million on 7 May 2021 which shall mature on 7
March 2022 at its nominal value of HK$76.00 million, or can
be converted into shares at the holder’s option on or before
the maturity date at the conversion price of HK$1.83 per
share. The maximum number of shares to be issued is
41,530,054 Shares for the third tranche of the Convertible
Notes. The third tranche of the Convertible Notes were
converted into a total of 41,530,054 shares on 24 June 2021.
The issuance of the Convertible Notes of HK$76.00 million
was used to satisfy the partial consideration for the
acquisition of Cheer Sino Investment Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares or
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Interest in underlying shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest

ESHR

510 HEHEMEE

Mr. Deng Zhonglin Beneficial owner

B B S A EmEA A
Notes:
1. “L" denotes long position and “S" denotes short position.

2. These 12,000,000 underlying shares represent the 12,000,000 shares
which may be allotted and issued to Mr. Deng Zhonglin upon full
exercise of the share options granted to him on 1 June 2018 under the
Share Option Scheme.

EEREBITRARRELAFHRE
NFIREMEE 3 F T H M4l
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BERkE

R-_B-—FRXA=1tH ZEZERARF
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FRBEMRHI]) FEXVER) Z By s ARR A (D
K& A RIERE S M B &P 5 352 1%
RERTIFEZELMAARE  RE LD
RAITERETRAAS TG AR E MR
Pz #Em SORRIAT ¢

RARBEARG 2 #R
Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying interest in
shares the Company
HAQRERZ
HERGOEE BAB D
(Note 1)
(P$3E1)
12,000,000 (L) 0.64%
(Note 2)
12,000,000 (L)
(M$5E2)

1, [LIsEiFR RIS kA -

2. %% 12,000,000 AR M IER =T —\FXA
— BB T A AR IR R AR AR AT B IR 2 BB IR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2021, to the best of the knowledge and belief of
the Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest

50 EEME

BRI &

Mr. Chen Chao Beneficial owner

PRIEBSE 4 EmEAA
Note:
1. “L" denotes the corporation/person’s long position (as defined under

Part XV of the SFO) in the shares.
TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”), the Remuneration Committee and the
nomination committee of the Board are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EFEEHRE @

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (chairman),
Mr. Choi Hung Fai and Dr. Wong Kong Tin, sp. The Audit
Committee has reviewed, with management and the
independent auditor of the Company, the annual results and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Reporting Year.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
HLM CPA Limited who will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at a fee to
be agreed by the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Deng Zhonglin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 September 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
ERELGHE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”) is pleased to present
the corporate governance report for the year ended 30 June
2021 (the “Reporting Year"). This report describes how the
Group has applied its corporate governance practices to its
daily activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and adopted all code
provisions, where applicable, as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code") as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as its own code of corporate governance.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices
regularly to ensure compliance with the CG Code. During the
Reporting Year, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the
CG Code except for the following deviations:

o Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The chairman provides leadership for the
board and ensures that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities whilst the chief executive
officer has overall chief executive responsibilities for
business development and day-to-day management
generally.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
LEERARE 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

Mr. Deng Zhonglin, being the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”), was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company (the “CEO”) on 31 May 2021. In
view of the current rapid development of the Group, the
Board believes that vesting the roles of both the
Chairman and the CEQ in the same person can facilitate
the execution of the Group’s business strategies and
boost effectiveness of its operation. In addition, under
the supervision of the Board which is comprised of two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
four independent non-executive Directors, the Board is
appropriately structured with a balance of power to
provide sufficient checks and supervision to protect the
interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
Company may seek to re-comply with code provision
A.2.1 by identifying and appointing a suitable and
qualified candidate to the position of the CEO in due
course by considering the business needs and
developments of the Group.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings to
gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Ms. Huang Chian Sandy, being a non-
executive Director, could not attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 4 December 2020
because of her other business commitments. Aiming
for compliance with this provision, the Company will
furnish all Directors with appropriate information of all
general meetings and take all reasonable measures to
arrange the schedule in such a cautious way to enable
all Directors to attend the general meetings as far as
possible.

Except for the above deviations from the CG Code, the Board
is of the view that the Company has complied with the CG
Code for the Reporting Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEERARE 2

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
Company'’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. In response to the specific
enquiries made by the Company, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she had complied with the Model Code
during the Reporting Year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Subsequent to the adoption of the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company (the “M&A") upon listing of
the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the shareholders’ resolution of the Company passed on 18
October 2013, no amendment to the M&A has been made.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 30 June 2021, the Board comprised two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and four independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board and
its changes during the Reporting Year and up to the date of
this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman)
(Appointed as CEO on 31 May 2021)

Mr. Xu Feng (CEQ)
(Resigned on 31 May 2021)
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan
(Appointed on 15 July 2020)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy
(Appointed on 15 July 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Choi Hung Fai
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki

Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp
Mr. Qiu Peiyuan
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

LEERARE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The biographical details, relationships among them and the
terms of appointment of the Directors (including the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors)
up to the date of this annual report are set out in the section
headed "“Biographical Details of Directors”.

The Board believes that it has a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) and there is a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. As at 30 June 2021, the Company had
four independent non-executive Directors who provide the
Group with adequate check and balance. Each of them is
considered to be independent with respect to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Their functions are not limited to a restricted
scope and they have contributed to the Group with diversified
industry expertise, and advised on the Group’s management
and proceedings.

One of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Tsang Wing Ki, has appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of
the Group’s overall strategies and policies, the approval of
business plans and the evaluation of their performance, the
oversight and review of the management and corporate
governance function. It is also responsible for promoting the
success of the Group’s businesses by directing and
supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board delegates day-to-
day operations of the Group to executive Directors and senior
management of the Group while reserving certain key
matters for its approval. The Board committees for specific
functions have been set up to ensure efficient Board
operations. The respective functions and responsibilities
reserved to the Board and those delegated to Board
committees have been clearly set out in their respective
terms of reference. Decisions of the Board are communicated
to the management through executive Directors who have
attended the Board meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

LEERARE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions and Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions with the following duties:

(@ to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations on any necessary changes and
updates;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
of the Company and the Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

During the Reporting Year, the corporate governance duties
performed by the Board were as follows:

(@ reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices;

(b) reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

() reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report;

(d) reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management
of the Company; and

(e) reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees of the Company and the
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

LEERARE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Deng Zhonglin has been appointed as an executive
Director and the Chairman on 14 October 2016 and 12 May
2017 respectively. Subsequently, Mr. Deng Zhonglin has been
appointed as the CEO on 31 May 2021 to fill the casual
vacancy caused by the resignation of Mr. Xu Feng.

As at 30 June 2021, Mr. Deng Zhonglin held the offices of the
Chairman and the CEO. The Board believes that vesting the
above roles in the same person provides the Company with
strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies. At the same time, in order to fulfill the
requirement of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
Company is looking for a suitable and qualified candidate to
fill the vacancy of the CEO and will use its best endeavours to
ensure that a new CEO will be appointed as soon as
practicable.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Mr. Deng Zhonglin, as an executive Director, entered into a
service agreement dated 14 October 2016 (supplemented by
a supplemental service contract dated 14 October 2019) with
the Company, pursuant to which Mr. Deng holds office for an
initial term of three years commencing on 14 October 2016
and renewable automatically on expiry for successive terms
of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”).

Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan, as an executive Director, entered
into a service agreement with the Company with an initial
term of three years commencing on 15 July 2020, which may
be continued subject to terms and conditions to be mutually
agreed by both parties.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-
executive Directors have been appointed for an initial term of
one year, renewable automatically for successive term of one
year each commencing from the next day after the expiry of
the then current term appointment. All remuneration paid to
executive Directors are covered by respective service
contracts and all remuneration paid to the non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors are
covered by respective letters of appointment.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

LEERARE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors (Continued)

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director newly
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Also, pursuant to the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Every newly appointed Director will be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under the
relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Board Meetings

During the Reporting Year, the Board met regularly to review
the financial and operating performance of the Company and
to discuss future strategy. The Directors may participate
either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

For the Reporting Year, the Company has adopted the
practice of holding Board meetings regularly at least four
times a year in approximately quarterly intervals. At the
Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters
including the Company’s annual consolidated financial
statements and interim consolidated financial information,
proposals for dividends (if any), annual and interim reports,
approved material capital expenditure and other corporate
actions of the Group.

In order to ensure that the Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed, all Directors are
able to access the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) for advice from time to time.
Moreover, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expense. All Directors were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
meetings for discussion.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEETLIRSE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) BEE 2
Board Meetings (Continued) EEgeR ()

To ensure a competent Board operation, all Directors gave
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
During the Reporting Year, 7 Board meetings (excluding
delegated committees’ meetings) were held and the
attendance record of each Director is set out as follows:

RERESSAWEE  2REFSRICE
REBEBIRENEEEH RBREF
B BERET7/AEFeeR(IM1BERES
BEEH)  SEFHFECEIIIWT

Attendance/Number of
HERE EERE
Annual
Board general
Name of Directors meetings meeting
Espg EEgeE RREFKE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman) BB (£
(Appointed as CEO on 31 May 2021) (M=ZZ=—%FA
=+ —BEZERITHER) 77 11
Mr. Xu Feng (CEO) LS A (TR A
(Resigned on 31 May 2021) (M=ZZ=—%FA
=+—HET) 6/7 11
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan BERBEE
(Appointed on 15 July 2020) (RZZ-_ZTF+AT+HEE
£F) 6/7 M
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy BER T
(Appointed on 15 July 2020) (RZZ-_ZTF+ATHEE
£F) 57 01
Independent Non-executive Directors BEIFHTES
Mr. Choi Hung Fai B 5/7 11
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki Lo AE 6/7 11
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp VP NE R s 717 11
Mr. Qiu Peiyuan Ut E 3/7 1/1

EEee R EFTR R e 2 OMCiH
NE B RE I AR 2 B A RTF © P
TRLBEAREANTAHRINESSE
Bl - ZE @R BFERAFALCEEE
EERCEEMELZIRTE - EFESHA
BZOBEARRERSBREEZLBESE U
HWEELER RO -

The minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary or other duly
authorised person. All minutes are open for inspection by any
Director on reasonable notice. Such minutes recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions
reached during each meeting. The drafts and final versions of
the minutes of Board meetings are sent to all Directors for
their comments and records.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEETLIRS 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director will receive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business
and awareness of the Director’s responsibilities.

The details of the continuous professional development
participated by the Directors during the Reporting Year are as
follows:

EE® )
EEREAARSEERERE

EFRECEETRNEREREIRERYERMH
SMERA - AERREZE THRARREE
REBERASBEREEZEE -

Attending
courses,
Reading seminars or
Name of Directors materials conferences
BHERRE -
EEpE MEME HEElEeR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman) BB (£/E)
(Appointed as CEO on 31 May 2021) (M=ZZ=—%FA
=+ AEZEATHREH) v v
Mr. Xu Feng (CEO) FHiEL S A (TTB A
(Resigned on 31 May 2021) (M=ZZ=—%FA
=+—HET) v v
Mr. Wong Yuk Lun Alan BERBEE
(Appointed on 15 July 2020) (RZZ-_TFLA+HAE
Z11) v v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Huang Chian Sandy BER T
(Appointed on 15 July 2020) (RZZ-_TFLA+HAE
Z11) v v
Independent Non-executive Directors By k#{TES
Mr. Choi Hung Fai BIEEE L 4 v
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki LKL E v v
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, /o ENPNEE s v v
Mr. Qiu Peiyuan bt 4 v

To enable the Directors to make informed and relevant
contributions to the Board, all the Directors are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
Reporting Year, all the Directors were provided with regular
updates and presentations on the changes and developments
of the Group’s business and the latest developments in laws,
rules and regulations relating to directors’ duties and
responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

LEERARE 2

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy on 18 October
2013 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and a diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Ccompany'’s business.

All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established the audit committee of the
Board (the “Audit Committee”) with specific written terms
of reference that have included the duties set out in the CG
Code provision C.3.3 with appropriate modifications when
necessary.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of the external auditor, to review the financial
information and material advice in respect of financial
reporting and to oversee the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEETLIRS 2

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2020 and consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 31 December 2020, including the Group’s
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal control
and risk management systems and financial reporting matters
(in conjunction with the external auditor for the annual
results). The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration
of the auditor for the year ended 30 June 2020 and has
recommended the Board to re-appoint HLM CPA Limited as
the auditor of the Company for the Reporting Year. The Audit
Committee has also monitored the effectiveness of the
external audit and its independence. The Audit Committee
has endorsed the accounting treatments adopted by the
Company and, to the best of its ability assured that the
disclosure of the financial information in this annual report
complied with the applicable accounting standards and
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Year, the Audit Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Tsang Wing Ki (the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Choi Hung Fai and Dr. Wong Kong Tin, jp. The Company has
complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Tsang Wing Ki with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

During the Reporting Year, 3 Audit Committee meetings were
held pursuant to its terms of reference and the attendance
record of each member as to such meetings is set out as
follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Members of Audit Committee meetings
EREEENE HERE
BRRH

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki (Chairman) LKL A (EE) 3/3
Mr. Choi Hung Fai BB 3/3
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp = LRE A P4+ 3/3
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEETLIRSE 2

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up the remuneration committee of the
Board (the "Remuneration Committee”) with specific
terms of reference stating clearly its authority and duties with
appropriate modifications when necessary.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposal with reference to the Company’s
corporate goals and objectives, to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments comprising any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors.

During the Reporting Year, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members, namely Dr. Wong Kong Tin, s, (the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tsang Wing
Ki and Mr. Deng Zhonglin. The Company has complied with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Year, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings
were held for reviewing the remuneration policy and structure
for the Directors and senior management, assessing the
performance of executive Directors and approving the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts. The attendance record of
each member as to such meetings is set out as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Members of Remuneration Committee meeting
FMESENE HERE
= N

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, e (Chairman) BIRB T AT (EE) 2/2
Mr. Tsang Wing Ki B4 2/2

Executive Director BITES

Mr. Deng Zhonglin B B e A 2/2

Details of the Directors’” emoluments, retirement benefits and
remuneration payable to members of senior management
are disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EEMe RNEMNNENSREEEKE
ZEHM FERER G M MARME 3
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEETLIRS 2

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up the nomination committee of the
Board (the “Nomination Committee”) with specific terms
of reference stating clearly its authority and duties with
appropriate modification when necessary.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include to
review the structure, size, composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) and diversity of the Board, to
identify, screen and recommend to the Board on appropriate
candidates for directorship, to assess the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and to review the Board diversity
policy and to monitor its implementation from time to time.

During the Reporting Year, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, namely Mr. Deng Zhonglin (the
chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Choi Hung Fai
and Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp. The Company has complied with
code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.

During the Reporting Year, 2 Nomination Committee meetings
were held for (1) reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board; (2) reviewing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors; and (3) making
recommendations to the Board on the retirement by rotation
and re-election of Directors in the annual general meeting of
the Company (the “AGM"). The attendance record of each
member as to such meetings is set out as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of
Members of Nomination Committee meeting
REZEEHE HERE
BRXH
Executive Director HITES

Mr. Deng Zhonglin (Chairman) BB S A (F /%) 2/2

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Choi Hung Fai BN S A 2/2
Dr. Wong Kong Tin, Jp ENPNERw e 2/2
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

LEERARE 2

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tung Tat Chiu Michael (“Mr. Tung") is an external service
provider engaged by the Company as the Company Secretary
and Mr. Deng Zhonglin, the Chairman and CEQ, is the key
contact person with whom Mr. Tung can contact. Mr. Tung
has confirmed to the Company that he has attended no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Reporting Year.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards and the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Group adopted the going concern basis in
preparing its financial statements.

A statement by the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining a
sound system of risk management and internal control within
the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. However, such
system was designed to manage various risks of the Group
within certain acceptable risk level, rather than to completely
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives
of the Group, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or 10ss.

During the Reporting Year, the Board through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of both the design
and implementation effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, covering all
material controls, with a view to ensuring that the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

LEERARE 2

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

The Board has engaged an external professional service firm
to assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of interviews annually; to independently
perform internal control review and assess the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
for the Reporting Year. The findings and areas for
improvement were reported to the Audit Committee and the
management. The Audit Committee was of the view that
there was no material internal control defect noted. All
recommendations were properly followed up by the Group to
ensure that they were implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Board therefore considers that the risk
management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and
the Board is currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the Group in
light of the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s
business. It was decided that the Board would be directly
responsible for the internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is aware of the relevant obligations under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules. In order to
enhance the Group's system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and
timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures,
which include the access of information being restricted to a
limited number of employees on a need-to-know basis, to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent possible
mishandling of inside information within the Group.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate the employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEERARE 2

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Year, the Group's external auditor
provided the following services to the Group:

B A BN &
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HK$'000
TR

Audit services ZE AR T 1,150
Non-audit services IEAZ B PR TS 240
Total A&t 1,390
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS HBERERIRIEZETER

AND INVESTORS

General Meetings with Shareholders HERREITRERE

The Company communicates with its shareholders through
its annual report, interim report and statutory and voluntary
announcements. The Directors, the Company Secretary or
appropriate members of the senior management, where
appropriate, also respond to inquiries from shareholders and
investors on a timely basis. The AGM provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
the shareholders.

Resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the
Company are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the
conduct of the poll are explained to the shareholders at the
commencement of each general meeting. The poll results are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively on the same day of the poll.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)

LEERARE 2

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (Continued)

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene Extraordinary
General Meetings and to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

In accordance with the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders of the Company holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Directors or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There is no provision in the Articles of Association setting out
procedures for shareholders to put forward a resolution at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director by
shareholders, please refer to the procedures available on the
website of the Company.

Investor Relations

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely and timely
as possible. It has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. When
announcements are made through the website of the Stock
Exchange, the same information will be made available on
the Company’s website. During the Reporting Year, the
Company has issued announcements which can be viewed
on the Company's website.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the
Company Secretary at the Company'’s office in Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also raise their enquiries in general
meetings.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“"ESG Report”)

B HERELIRE([E

ABOUT THE GROUP

NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the organisation and sponsorship of exhibitions
and events, the operation of cultural and entertainment
comprehensive services platform and provision of loan and
financing services.

Environmental and social responsibilities are viewed as the
Group's core commitment to environment, internal workplace
and external community, and an integral part of the Group’s
practice to create value for stakeholders.

Our strategy is to fulfil the Group’s environmental and social
responsibilities through achieving environmental and social
objectives during operations and complying with all relevant
legal requirements.

The board of directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for evaluating and determining the Group’s ESG-
related risks and ensuring that appropriate and effective ESG
risk management and internal control systems are in place.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Introduction of this Report

The Group is pleased to release our fourth Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (hereinafter this “Report” or
"ESG report”). Through this Report, we wish to respond to
different issues regarding Environmental, Social and
Governance (hereinafter “ESG") which major stakeholders
are concerned with a comprehensive and transparent
manner, and disclose the Group’s vision, strategies and
practices in the process of sustainable development
objectively to enhance stakeholders’ understanding and
confidence in the Group so as to continuously improve our
ESG performance.

Title Description

For the convenience of expression and reading, “NOVA
Group”, “the Group”, “we"” and “us” in this Report refer to
“NOVA Group Holdings Limited”.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) (continued)
BE MBERELIGHE(RE HERELILE]

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)

Basis of Preparation

This Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and
complies with the “comply or explain” provisions of the
Guide. It also reports most of the social key performance
categorised as “recommended disclosure” in the Guide. In
order to fully demonstrate the Group’'s efforts and
achievements in the ESG aspect during the year ended 30
June 2021 (the “Reporting Year") to all stakeholders, this
Report is prepared in accordance with the four reporting
principles set out in the Guide, namely materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency, which serve as the
basis for the preparation of this Report. We strive to fully
reflect the Group's policies, strategies and related materiality
in the ESG aspect in this Report, and continuously improve
the content of disclosure in the future.

Scope of Reporting

The reporting period of this Report ranged from 1 July 2020 to
30 June 2021, with appropriate forward and backward
extensions for certain contents in order to better reflect the
ESG performance of the Group. The contents disclosed in this
Report (including policy documents, statements and data,
etc.) mainly covered major business segments of the Group:

o Financing segment — Money Lending, Factoring and
Financing

e  Cultural and Entertainment segment — Trading,
Services and Branding

e Exhibition segment

Data Sources and Reliability Statement

The information and cases disclosed in this Report are from
the Group's internal documents, statistical reports or relevant
public information. The Group assures that the contents of
this Report, for which the Group accepts full responsibility for
its truthfulness, accuracy and completeness, are free of any
false statements, misleading representations or material
omissions.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) continued)

B HERELIRE([E

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group strives to conduct its business in a transparent,
equitable, legal and socially responsible manner, and
continues to care about the impact its daily operation may
bring to the environment, customers and community, making
an effort to safeguard the interests of all stakeholders and
strike a balance between environmental, social and economic
development.

The expectations and opinions of stakeholders are essential
for the Group to improve its sustainable development
strategy. Over the years, we have continued to maintain
close communication with internal and external stakeholders
such as government/regulatory bodies, shareholders,
suppliers, employees, customers and the community public
through a wide range of channels such as regular meetings,
activities, reports, websites, etc., to understand their opinions
on the performance of the Group, actively communicate with
various stakeholders, constantly collect their opinions and
feedback, fully understand their expectations and
suggestions, and identify areas for improvement. In order to
balance our business requirement, social demand and
environmental impact, we keep monitoring the risks and
opportunities arising from our daily course of operation, and
promote a corporate management culture with high
transparency to ensure our sustainable development
strategies are being communicated to significant
stakeholders such as employees, customers, suppliers and
the community.

Set out below are the expectations and concerns of
respective significant stakeholders and our corresponding
communication channels during the Reporting Year.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) (continued)
BRE HERELIGE(RR HEREIHED &

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS #2115 i&E

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication channels
FlzsAHRE S HRSEETR K BEAR
Government and e |In compliance with laws and e Information disclosure
regulatory authorities regulations e Communication with regulatory
e Legal operation authorities
e In compliance with the Listing Rules e Tax returns
BN REEKE o EFEREER o [EEHKEE
o HEEE o HEELEMIBYIGE
o E<F LEmRA o MBI
Shareholders e Profit return e Group announcements
e Business development e General meetings
e ESG governance e Sjte inspection
. Corporate image e Timely reporting
BRR o WMl o EENE
o XiFEE e BREKRE
o ESGIREE o EHhE
o BER o TEHIERE
Suppliers e Legal operation and quality standards e Meeting with suppliers
of suppliers e Online survey
e Fair and reasonable treatment of e Review and evaluation
business partners e Tendering and bidding activities
e Service quality and customers’
satisfaction
g o MEMSEESKmETE o HEREE
o ERBHATASEMNGFSR s PEERAE
e REMEHBETMEE o FzMEME
o HKIZEH
Employees e Employee compensation and benefits e  Staff representative meetings
e Employee health and safety e Group activities
e Legal and lawful recruitment e |etter communication
e Employee training and development e Recommendation box
e Working environment
BT e BIfFBERA e BINKKKRE
e BIfEHEZSE « KEEH
o SEAHRATL . E
o BIEHIMEER o EEM
o TIFIRIE
Customers e Quality of product and service e Satisfaction survey
e Customer information security e Sales feedback
e Legal operation
e Health and safety protection
EE s EmkRBEE s WEERE
s HEXEERE o H&EF
o HEEE
o BEERLZRIRE
community e Community environment e Community communication
e Charity and public benefit activities e  Press release/announcements
e Community contribution
e |egal operation
HE o HEIRE o @B
o BERE o ¥/ RE
o tRER
s BEEE
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) (continued
BRE HERELIHE(EER - BFRELIERE]D @

ANALYSIS OF MATERIALITY ISSUES

The Group reviewed the material ESG issues identified by the
Group during the Reporting Year with reference to the
relevant issues in the Guide of the Stock Exchange to identify
the material issues of the Group. The Group invited
stakeholders to participate in the materiality assessment
survey and commissioned an independent consultancy firm
to collect feedback from stakeholders to ensure the accuracy
and objectivity of the assessment results. Through the
distribution of questionnaires to stakeholders and upon the
analysis of the responses, the following material issues were
identified and highlighted in subsequent sections in order to
respond to the expectations of various stakeholders more
accurately.

Identify relevant

issues
BB R R A

Collection of
stakeholders’
feedback

eIk
MBS R &

Identification
of material
issues

WA EE M RE

Confirmation

EEMHRES N

AREBE2 R ARSI NERNEE - &
AEBAEREFEANBINERHESGHE
EITRG  UERAKENERERE - K
SEBFENERET2EER NGRS -
I & 738 S A A A R) R A s AR R U5 /9 [
8B R AR ERIE R ZBIE - B
B A M &5 AR B 70 RS RS A AT 1R 1S DA
TEEUHHEE  IYNBERESEHPHEER
W - DA AERED [ R NS AR T RO HAEE o

Identify ESG issues relevant to the business of the Group based on the
results of materiality assessments in previous years, issues of concern to the
industry, Hong Kong and international reporting standards and the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals, etc.
BIREFHNEENTEER  AENEERRE  BERERREEER
e BRI R R B RS # R AR B S HAMNESGEE ©

Invite stakeholders to conduct an online survey to assess
the materiality of each ESG issue.

BB NEARE T ETTR LREHE - FHASEESGRENERE -

Assess the materiality of each issue to stakeholders and
to the Group, a materiality matrix is created to determine
the material issues to be considered in priority.

AHESREH NS R AKENE R - EUERMEME -
ETTFELEENEENEE -
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of material
issues

REEMRE

The identified material issues to be reviewed by the Board of the Group
and disclosed in this Report.

HASEEESRECAINERUSE  TERRENETHRE -
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) (continued)

BE -HEREARE((ER dERELIRE]@

NOVA Group 2020/2021 Analysis on Material ESG Issues Matrix

AREE T/ —FEESCREETEM I EM

10
o T
= The Most Important Issues
REERE
&
=
O =
R @%
e g
s 2 - b @
I 8
S & @
o i=
g Esn)
3w
0
0 5 10
Low Importance to NOVA Group High
{li§ HAEEEENEEY =
1. Product and 2. Legaland 3. Legaland 4. Internal 5. Employee
Service Quality Compliance Compliance Integrity Training and
Operation Employment Management Development
1. EmRBRKEE 2. BEEREE 3. BEEeRAI 4. ABRBERE 5. BT EER
6. Employee Health 7. Employee 8. Employee 9. Intellectual 10. Suppliers Legal
and Safety Benefits and Communication Property Operation and
Welfare Protection Quality
Standards
6. BEIREHZ2 7. BIFAHEEN 8 BIBE 9. MEERRE 10. HEBSLEE
EmEEE
11. Equipment 12. Integration of 13. Diversified Staff ~ 14. Operation 15. Environmental
Procurement and Services with Background Wastewater and Social
Supply Local Community Discharge and Performance of
Development Treatment Suppliers
1. RERBREE 12 REESMEE 13 BEIERZK(C 14 EE5KEME 15 HEENIRRE
EREA RE HERHA
16. Green 17. Waste Disposal 18. Water 19. Greenhouse Gas  20. Donations and
Environmental and Emission Consumption and Emissions and Volunteering
Protection Publicity Reduction Conservation Emission Activities
and Education Reduction
16. HERREBHE 17 BEEREBHEFHE 18 KERERRE 19 ;‘Eﬁ’&%ﬁt‘ﬁﬂ(& 20. BEEHERREE
7K R
Note: The boldfaced topics in the table are identified material issues. Mt RIETPHERADHEINESHERE -
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) continued)
BE MBERELIGHF(RE HERELIELE]

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE

ESG Governance

As a responsible enterprise, we actively manage ESG issues
and promote corporate sustainable development. The Group
has designated the chief executive officer to carry out daily
ESG management in accordance with the ESG Guide and
other relevant laws and regulations of the places where the
Group operates, which includes implementing the strategies
and measures adopted by the Board on operational, financial,
environmental and social issues and responsibilities, and
collecting and collating key performance indicators, regularly
reviewing, monitoring and reporting on ESG related matters.

Our chief executive officer conducts regular review on any
material ESG related change and makes recommendations
on improvement measures and solutions. The Group will
continue to provide sufficient resources to monitor the
implementation of ESG strategies and policies on an ongoing
basis, and strictly comply with all relevant laws, rules and
regulations when carrying out business, while at the same
time observe the ESG guidelines, so as to achieve sustainable
development among the environment, society, employees
and the Group itself.

Legal Operation

The Group upholds a high standard of integrity and
professional ethics in its operations. Through excellent
management and compliant operation, we hope to promote
the economic development of society, serve the real
economy and facilitate sustainable development while
providing quality services to customers. To this end, during
our daily operation, we attach high importance to business
ethics and strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China € P2 A R FIE A FE))
and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China (P ZEARAMBE R TN EEFEF ).

In terms of protection of intellectual property, the Group
requires its subsidiaries to purchase legitimate software and
multimedia resources to ensure the use of licensed
multimedia and software resources. If any piracy, theft,
falsification, illegal possession, counterfeiting or other forms
of infringement of intellectual property are found upon
investigation, the Group will immediately rectify such
behaviour and take disciplinary actions, and serious cases
will be handed over to relevant authorities for their handling
in accordance with the law; if such behaviour constitutes an
offence, those who committed such offence shall be held
responsible in accordance with the law.

FRER

ESG A

ERBEENDE  BRMERETIEEGCSE
B HHOEMFEYEE - AEBOIEIRIT
R 48 & AR 5 ESG T8 5| K H Ath 45 B8 38 & FrE it
EREFHEITHEESCEIR - HhaEH
TEESHEL UK RERHSBER
MR 2 R R dE e - WHESGHEBEE
EITRRRIBEIZRE MR - FH®RE -

EEREE -

1T T Bl R B ESG AR RAH) (] E A&
B WIRHBE MR R - NEBEKES
TR B B R AR 48 B2 B ESG SR A% K R 1Y
BE YRHAREBREBRETAAERA
BRER - AR2RESGHES| - WERERE -
e BIRAKERS ZENARFERRE -

BREY

AEBERBELETRERERERBEE
B-HMALEBEUNERRARES
EREPRESEENRBGRR - HBtte
REEER  REEREE  REVHEHE
o Rt ERAEEZ®ET  RAREE
BEFEEZEST  BRETEB(RRIEDD - (R
ZEARAMBERRE) (PEARKMER
NEEBRFER) FHEBMERER ©

EHBERRELIE  AEERTETHEB
REPBELRETMZHEER - BRE
RAEBMRENZHEBHHMETEIR - 55
EHRBFESIFE B B IBEEE -
REXANEMPEARENFEENTS - A
SEBLNERLETRD - BEBRAKE
RZAARABPIHOERRRIE - BAIEEMRIEORE

FHE -

~H=
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) continued)

B HERELIRE([E

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continued)

ESG Governance (Continued)

The Group has pledged that the use of false promotional
messages is prohibited. When disseminating public
information such as advertisements and recruitment
materials, we strictly comply with the requirements under the
laws and regulations such as the Advertising Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({ # 2= A R &£ M B £ & %)) by
filing them with approving authorities for their review and
approval.

The Group ensures that the information of customers and
business are highly secured. To further clarify the
requirements on privacy protection by the Group, as required
by the laws and regulations such as the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Tort Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({2 A R XM (Z# H E)%)),
we ensure that the confidentiality of material non-public
information such as business secrets and customer
information are strictly maintained. The Group has formulated
relevant regulations with detailed provisions on the scope of
confidential issues and confidentiality level categorisation,
the requirements for confidential issues and the handling and
accountability for unauthorised disclosure and leakage. The
Group has signed non-disclosure agreements with all
employees and cooperating suppliers to ensure that they are
aware of and undertakes to comply with the Group’s
confidentiality requirements. In the event of any leakage of
the private information of our customers or the Group, the
Group will promptly take remedial measures and disciplinary
actions against the persons held responsible depending on
the severity of the incident.

During the Reporting Year, no complaints or legal
proceedings regarding infringement of intellectual property,
advertising, labelling and privacy issues were received by or
brought against the Group.

2020/215FF3R o
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) continued)
BE MBERELIGHF(RE HERELIELE]

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Professional Ethics

NOVA Group operates its business on the principles of
honesty, ethics and integrity, also resolutely resists illegal
acts such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
and any behaviours which may be detrimental to the Group
and its stakeholders are prohibited. We strictly abide by the
national and regional laws and regulations regarding anti-
corruption, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance ({¥T.%t# LR 9 FE R EEKH)),
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China ({# % A
R # 1 B | J% )), the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({F 2 A R MBI & E8%)), the
Anti-Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of China ({7 £
AR £ B & & 8% )), the Criminal Procedure Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({9 ZE A R £ B | E 57 FA%))
and Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China(( #ZE AR £ MEA & T IEE # F %) and other
relevant laws and regulations. The Group adopts a zero-
tolerance approach to any form of bribery and corruption,
and requires employees to perform their duties with integrity
and serve customers with a fair and professional attitude. We
explicitly prohibit illegal acts such as bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering and regulate the professional
behaviours and ethics of all employees in the Group.

In addition, the Group has established a reliable whistle-
blowing channel for employees and those who deal with the
Group to report any suspected misconduct to the Group
verbally or in writing. Upon receipt of the report, we will
conduct investigation immediately, and if the allegation is
found to be true, we will take disciplinary actions against the
person concerned, and if necessary, take legal actions to
report to the relevant regulatory or law enforcement
authorities.

During the Reporting Year, we were not aware of any illegal
cases of bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering
threatened against the Group or its employees.

The Group will provide employees of all levels with anti-
corruption trainings in order to enhance the awareness of
anti-corruption.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) (continued)
BE MBERELIGHE(RE HERELILE]

MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE (Continued)

Supplier Management

Suppliers play an integral role in the business of the Group.
The Group firmly believes that comprehensive supply chain
management is paramount to maintain the quality of the
products and services of the Group, and to promote
sustainable development. To protect our vital interests, the
Group always selects legitimate suppliers with outstanding
quality, relevant qualifications and excellent service
capabilities on the basis of transparency and fairness. The
performance of suppliers in discharging their environmental
and social responsibilities is also one of the evaluation criteria
for our suppliers. In the process of selecting suppliers, factors
such as candidates’ sustainable development and
management strategies, labour standards, moral standards
and environmental management systems are included in the
scoring system for close examination. The Group also
encourages suppliers to actively assume their corporate
social responsibilities by observing the regulatory
requirements and business ethics in respect of business
operation, marketing campaigns, social occasions and
environmental obligations.

To ensure the services and products quality provided by
suppliers, we evaluate our existing suppliers on a regular
basis and remove those found to be in serious non-
compliance or whose quality fails to meet the requirements,
thereby reducing the risks associated with the supply chain.
New suppliers will also be introduced according to our
selection criteria to maintain the Group’s sustainable
development and achieve our ultimate goal of a win-win
Situation.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) continued)
BE MBERELIGHF(RE HERELIELE]

ELITE TEAMS

Employment Management

NOVA Group understands that employees are an
indispensable cornerstone for business development, and
excellent talents are the driving force for sustainable
development. The Group provides employees with attractive,
reasonable and fair treatment and remuneration, and actively
improves the employee benefit policies to increase
employees’ sense of belonging and work enthusiasm, and
jointly promote sustainable development. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations, such as the
Employment Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({9 2 A K H F B 45 &) )% ), the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FFZE AR £
ME & B4 [F%)), the Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China (( 1 # A K £ A1 B 1+ & 1R fg /%)), the
Implementing Regulations of the Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({FZE AR EMHLE & REE
e & 511 )), etc., continuously improves the human resources
management system, and implements normalised and
standardised management in respect of salary and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, and anti-discrimination, so as to
effectively protect the interests of employees.

The Group promotes a diverse and respectful workplace to
ensure that employees are not treated differently due to
factors such as gender, age, nationality, race, religion, family
and health conditions, and eliminate any form of
discrimination.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had not experienced
any complaints or litigations regarding the violation of laws
relating to recruitment, compensation, dismissal, promotion,
performance assessment, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other aspects
of employment.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) continued)
BRE MERELIHRE(RE HEREIHLE] 2

ELITE TEAMS (Continued) WERERR 2

Employment Management (Continued) EBREEE &)

During the Reporting Year, the Group had an aggregate of 97 RIREEE - NEFE—HB97RKET - 5
employees. The details are as follows: TR ¢

Existing Employees

Gender BHEET Number Percentage
4 B AE P4 Eb 451
Male g 45 46.4%
Female @ 52 53.6%

Age Number Percentage
Fir A Fi 4l & 51

Under 30 305 T 20 20.6%
30-40 30-407% 52 53.6%
41-50 41-50 5% 17 17.5%
51 or above 518R8A £ 8 8.2%
Position Number Percentage
Bqu A Fir 4k e 451
Senior management SREIEE 16 16.5%
Middle management RN ST [ 23 23.7%
General employees LM T 58 59.8%

Employee Turnover

Gender RKET Number Percentage
14 51 N | i e 45
Male s 48 57.1%
Female oy 36 42.9%
Age Number Percentage
FiR A P& EE Bl
Under 30 305 AT 29 34.5%
30-40 30-407% 48 57.1%
41-50 41-50 5% 6 7.1%
51 or above 5158 A 1 1.2%
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) continued)

B HERELIRE([E

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Lawful Labour

The Group prohibits the use of child labour or forced labour.
In accordance with the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(KR EARZELME S B A X)), the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors and the
Regulations on the Implementation of the Employment
Contract ({HRE#E AR EMEIRKF ARE LML EE R EHE
& 5 )), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Minors (€ A 2 A & 2L K1 B K B F A IR K))
and the Provisions on the Prohibition against the Use of Child
Labour ((Z£ [F £ A E T #R 7F ), we have clearly stipulated in
the labour contracts that the Group and its employees have
equal legal status and that no party shall impose its/his/her
will on the other party. The Group strictly implements relevant
procedures in the recruitment process and screens out all job
applicants under the age of 15, and their identification
certificates are carefully examined in the interviews. In case
of any violation of relevant regulations, the Group will
immediately terminate the employment contract to prevent
child labour. The Group formulates the working hours of
employees according to relevant laws and regulations, and
does not encourage and emphasise overtime work.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had not experienced
any kind of child labour or forced labour related complaints.

Health and Safety

As a responsible employer, the Group believes employees’
health and safety are the guarantee of steady operation for
an enterprise. The Group continues to improve the health
and safety related system construction and daily
management to protect employees’ physical and mental
health. The Group strictly complies with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Regulation on
Work-Related Injury Insurance (£ T & 1R B 1§ 51l )), the Fire
Safety (Commercial Premises) Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(HE ARKLMBEIZ 2 4 EE)), the Law on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases of the People’s Republic of
China ( # 2 A & H A1 B B % 5% 5 )& /%)), and the
Administrative Measures for Occupational Health Inspection
(CHR 3 1% & B I 9% %)) and other relevant laws and
regulations, committed to creating a sanitary, safe and
comfortable office environment for employees.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) (continued)
BE MBERELIGHE(RE HERELILE]

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

We have formulated a series of emergency preparation and
response procedures at the Group’s exhibitions and
entertainment venues to further improve occupational health
management and reduce safety risks, regularly organised
safety drills, and equipped business premises with sufficient
labour protection supplies and firefighting equipment (such
as fire extinguishers and fire hoses), so as to
comprehensively reduce occupational safety risks.

In order to maintain a hygienic office environment, we
regularly hire professional cleaning companies to disinfect
telephones, keyboards, computers and other office supplies;
clean glass windows, walls, carpets as well as debugs. We
also carry out regular inspections of the hygienic conditions
of the items in our office environment and promptly clean or
replace those that do not meet hygienic standards.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had no work-related
safety incidents.

Training and Development

The development of employees is the top priority of the
Group'’s planning and also the driving force for the steady
development of NOVA Group. The Group continues to invest
resources and establish a sound training system. Through
various types of training and learning programmes, the Group
encourages employees to develop their potential, improves
team capabilities and overall quality, and lays a solid
foundation for the sustainable development of the Company.
Every year, the Group regularly formulates training work plans
for business development and employees’ career needs,
arranges diversified training programmes and seminars held
by relevant institutions. During the Reporting Year, the
Directors attended seminars and courses organised by
external parties; the Company’s financial controller and
accounting department also attend courses, seminars and
online courses organised by the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants or accounting firms from time to time every year.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) continued)
BE MBERELIGHF(RE HERELIELE]

ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Training and Development (Continued)

We attach great importance to training management work
and monitor training processes and outcomes. We undertake
assessment upon conclusion of training programmes,
whereby we also take into account trainees’ subsequent job
performances to carry out appraisals as to their overall
learning results, ensuring that our trainings are effective.
Meanwhile, the results of the training assessment will be
recorded in the employees’ files as references for potential
shift of positions, adjustment of ranks, assessment of
performance and other personnel activities.

During the Reporting Year, the average training hours of the
Group's employees are 2.2 hours per trainee.

Employee Care

NOVA Group has established a comprehensive remuneration
and welfare protection system in accordance with the laws,
and adheres to the principle of equal and fair employment.
We only consider candidates’ moral character, work ability,
development potential and compatibility with the Company’s
culture as the consideration for the appointment of talents,
and provide fair and competitive remuneration and benefits
based on their educational background, work experience,
career aspirations and other factors. Employees’
remuneration package includes basic salary, post salary and
comprehensive subsidies, as well as bonuses determined by
their business performance and individual performance,
serving as an effective motivation to employees. The Group
regularly adjusts employees’ remuneration and benefits by
evaluating their work ability and past performance, and
making reference to market and industry standards, which is
one of the bases for promotion. At the same time, the Group
provides performance-based salary according to the work
performance and position of employees to enhance the
motivation of employees to work hard, and formulates a
remuneration structure table to determine the salary range of
each rank and provide clear guidance for employees. The
Group ensures that all procedures such as remuneration
assessment, position and job grade transfer are fair, open
and transparent to ensure equal opportunities for all job
applicants and staff.
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ELITE TEAMS (Continued)

Employee Care (Continued)

Not only reasonable remuneration, the Group also
emphasises on welfare policy to encourage cohesion of our
staff and passion of work. Subject to the Employment
Ordinance and the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China ({ 2 ZE A & £ M B 2 & & [/ )& )), we
provide a wide range of benefits to employees, including
labour insurance, Mandatory Provident Fund, medical and life
insurance, telecommunication subsidy, lunch allowance,
overtime subsidy, travel allowance, heatstroke prevention
subsidy and labour protection allowance. In addition, we
implement standardised management on employees’
holidays and rest periods, and formulate policies to restrict
employees’ working hours with reference to laws, regulations
and guidelines such as the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong and the Provisions of the State Council on Employees’
Working Hours ({ B 7% Bz B8 i B T T E RS fE B9 48 %€ ), to
ensure that employees have sufficient rest. In addition to
statutory holidays and fixed paid annual leave, the Group’s
employees are provided with paid leave including annual
leave, sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave,
bereavement leave and examination leave to further protect
the legitimate rights of employees.

To ensure that our employees work in a pleasant and
comfortable environment, we attach great importance to our
employees’ voices, and have established a number of
channels, such as feedback boxes for collecting employees’
comments, in order to enhance communication with them,
understand their thoughts and suggestions, and continue to
perfect our employee management system. The Group also
encourages employees to respect, coordinate and support
one another during work and create a fair and diverse
working environment free from discrimination so as to
manifest our corporate values and fulfil social responsibilities.

Furthermore, we arrange various kinds of recreational
activities, dinners and parties for our employees from time to
time. On major traditional holidays, such as the Dragon Boat
Festival and the Mid-Autumn Festival, the Company buys rice
dumplings and mooncakes for employees as benefits, which
not only unites our team, but also encourages employees to
achieve a balance between life and work.
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ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS

Environmental Protection

The Group understands the importance of environmental
protection, strictly controls generation and emission of air
pollutants, waste discharges and others in adherence to the
Air Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong, the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China (( 2 A & £ #1 Bl I7 % (R & /%)), the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Pollution ({  ZE A & H£ A B )5 220576 /%)), the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution ((/ 2 A R H A EBI/K )5 2B778)%)), the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Noise Pollution ({7 # A & £ &
IREBRE S 058 K)), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution
Caused by Solid Wastes F 2 A R HHNE [EI 88 RE Y5 2 1875)
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving
Energy (2 A R £ F1 B & 49 82 J8 /%)) and other related
laws and regulations, to ensure that the Group does not
violate any laws or regulations related to environment in the
course of our operation and management.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we consistently carry out
the environmental sustainability development strategy across
our operations, perfect our environment management
system and promote green development. We continuously
gather and monitor data and information relating to major
environmental issues which are material to the Group. As the
Group is principally engaged in the exhibition management
business, management services and other business activities
which are all conducted in office, our daily operations do not
have any material effect on the environment, except for
greenhouse gas emissions indirectly generated from the use
of externally purchased electricity.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
violation of environmental protection laws and regulations.

Energy Saving and Reducing Emission

In order to reduce carbon emissions in business operations
and jointly cope with climate change, the Group actively
advocates the green policy of sustainable development and
strives to save energy, water, paper and other resources
within its capacity. We proactively raised our staff's
environmental awareness and implemented relevant
measures in energy saving and reducing emission in daily
operation so as to establish a low-carbon office.
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ENVIRONMENTAL OPERATIONS (Continued)

Energy Saving and Reducing Emission (Continued)

Electricity is the principal energy consumed in our daily operation
within the offices and galleries. The Group regularly monitors the
electricity consumption of the offices in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, instals LED lights with higher energy efficiency in the
offices to replace traditional fluorescent tubes, and encourages
employees to minimise the use of lights when natural light is
abundant; signs are displayed at prominent locations in offices
to raise employees’ awareness of energy conservation, central
air-conditioning is subject to reasonable adjustments in different
seasons,; electrical appliances are subject to regular energy
consumption inspections; energy saving and environmental
protection are considered in the procurement of new electrical
appliances. In 2022, the Group aims to maintain the same level
of waste as compared to that of this year.

Effective Use of Resources

The Group understands the precious nature of the earth’s
resources and actively advocates paperless office in the
office to reduce unnecessary office paper consumption. The
Group encourages employees to prioritise the
communication and dissemination of information through
e-mail and other electronic platforms. The Group encourages
double-sided printing and use of waste paper for printing
internal documents whenever possible.

The Group adheres to its commitment to sustainable
management and has taken various measures in the office to
encourage recycling to reduce waste generation. The Group
encourages employees to reuse office stationery such as
used envelopes and document folders whenever possible. In
terms of hazardous waste, as the business of the Group does
not involve any industrial production activities, the Company
did not generate any significant hazardous waste during the
Reporting Year.

The operation of the Group involves a small amount of water
for office activities. Although the Group did not encounter any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, we strive to
reduce water consumption and improve the efficiency of
water use in our operations. The Group has put up “Saving
Water Resource” posters in washrooms and food bars in the
office to raise employees’ awareness of water conservation.
In addition, the Group also regularly inspects and repairs the
water supply system, including water taps, water pipelines
and water storage tanks. Once the water supply equipment is
found to have dripping or leaking, professional parties will be
arranged to repair the water supply equipment immediately to
reduce waste caused by leakage of the water supply system.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE BRIREN

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s environmental RIFEFE - Hfig:st T AEBEEREH
performance in terms of resource consumption and &R ERIRBER
emissions are as follows:

Resource Consumption Indicator

EREHAEBERE
Electricity consumption’ EEE 77,343.53 kWh F EL B
Electricity consumption per capita ~A¥BFEBE 797.36 kwh/person?
FEE, A2
Water consumption? KBS 4,756.00 litre A F+
Water consumption per capita ABFEKE 49.03 litre/person
N
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Indicator
BERBHEHERER
Motor vehicle emissions (scope 1)  JREHFINE (BE—)* 807.95 kg F7e
Electricity consumption emissions & H{ERHERE (BE=)S 48,630.74 kg F
(scope 2)5
Total greenhouse gas emissions BBRERBHNE 49,438.69 kg F
Total greenhouse gas emission BRAEREBHERERE 509.68 kg/person
intensity Fr/A
Vehicle Air Pollutant Emissions Indicator®
HFERSEAMBEHREEZS
Sulphur oxides (SO,) emissions e (SO HEmE 5.03 g
Nitrogen oxide (NO,) emissions AAUEWINOY HE bk & 383.60 g
Suspended particulate matter (PM,,) S&ZZRY) (PM, ) BERE
emissions 28.24 g
Hazardous Waste Indicator Solid Waste Generation
BEEBREVER EREEYELE
Waste batteries generation BEEMELS 0 kg Fm
Waste batteries generation intensity EEEMEASRE 0 kg/person
FrA
Waste cartridge generation BRERaESLS 0 piece &
Waste cartridge generation intensity EBEERAEE4AHRE 0 piece/person
EVON
Non-hazardous Waste Indicator’
BEBREVER
Waste paper generation BFEMRELS 283.00 kg F 7
Waste paper generation intensity ~— BEEMARELZE 2.92 kg/person
Fr/A
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
(Continued)

1

The statistics of electricity consumption only cover Hong Kong head
office, Shanghai Dazhi Ruoyu Information Technology Co., Ltd.,
Shanghai Shouxin Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd., Dazhi Ruoyu
Entertainment Information Technology (Hainan) Co., Ltd., NOD
(Shanghai) Management Communication Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Lin
Yun Exhibition Service Limited Liability Company;

The Group has a total of 97 employees;

The statistics of water consumption only cover the bottled water
consumption of Hong Kong head office, Shanghai Dazhi Ruoyu
Information Technology Co., Ltd., Phebe (Shanghai) Brand Management
Limited and NOD (Shanghai) Management Communication Co., Ltd; the
Group’s water supply is sourced from the municipal water network,
and it has not experienced any difficulty in securing water supply;

The Group has two vehicles in Hong Kong. The motor vehicle emissions
were decreased substantially because there was relatively low usage
of two vehicles during the Reporting Year. The greenhouse gas (scope
1) emissions data is calculated with reference to the Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange;

The greenhouse gas (scope 2) emissions data is calculated with
reference to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by
the Stock Exchange;

The vehicle air pollutant emissions were decreased substantially
because there was relatively low usage of two vehicles during the
Reporting Year. The vehicle air pollutant emissions data is calculated
with reference to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued
by the Stock Exchange,

The scope of the Group's business operation does not involve any
packaging material.

The Group will keep recording its resource consumption for
reviewing the effectiveness of its conservation measures in
the future and formulating more specific improvement
measures and objectives.

Caring for Community

Adhering to the belief that “fragrance lingers in the hand that
gives roses”, NOVA Group encourages employees to actively
participate in charitable activities and provide voluntary
services (such as youth mentoring programmes) to support
sustainable development of the community and society.
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report ("ESG Report”) continued)
BE MBERELIGHF(RE HERELIELE]

CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is among the most pressing global challenges
of our time. Against the backdrop of global climate actions,
the Group has implemented measures to conserve energy
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. In addition, the Group
is conscious that the frequency of extreme weather is
increasing, which could impact its business operations.
Recognising the possible impact of extreme weather on
human security and infrastructure, precautionary measures
have been taken by the Group, including work arrangements
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in the case of adverse weather conditions such as Black
Rainstorm Warning and Typhoon Signal No. 8, as well as
insurance coverage for fire, flood and typhoon damages to
merchandise, furniture, fixtures and fittings.

Going forward, the Group will continue to review the impact
of climate change on its operations and implement mitigation
controls for significant risks to enhance its resilience and
adaptability to climate change.

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

RE - REBS#EERSRIRECHELE
MF L WHITIEHERREEXER - #
e 8 RIRE R PR S KB IE -

(B - HERELSHE)ATREI

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EEH —REERERENES

A. Environmental Reference Section(s)

A RE BEER
Aspect A1: General Disclosure
Emissions —BHE
EBHEA1: .
By Information on: \ -~ )
BRABERIRERBIN AR  BERESEEY
MWEASER
(@)  thepolicies; and
@ BE: R
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water zfﬂoff%_?f’;
RN

and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BER o

Note:  Air emissions includes NO,, SO,, and other pollutants regulated under national
laws and regulations.
i BERERERALLY  RENEAGZEFARRRIIRENSRY -

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.
BERBOE_SLER - Tk @tTA - SRKMEEY 2RISR o

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.
BEEENERZRDMREE -
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TEER  EE —REEREREXES
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“"ESG Report”) (continued)
BRE HEREIGE(ER

(B - tEREARE)ABERSI

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Environmental

BREMIEIZATL  |emissions data. Performance
BERUE S SR BE R - RIBEM

KPIA1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)

BREMIEIZAT2 | greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Environmental
production volume, per facility). Performance
B (8E) kegREE (BE2) RERES REEX
ME (MR E) R (ER) ZE (MIAFE
2B BEREAE)

KPIA1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)

BHERUEIZA13 | and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per Environmental
unit of production volume, per facility). Performance
FEABEREZEYRE (UMTE) R (nE RIBEM
) BE (M SER B - SRRMHE) -

KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in

BRERIEIZATA | tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (€.g Environmental
per unit of production volume, per facility). Performance
PEEEEREENEAE (UHAE) R(E REBEN
R)EE (NMABESEEN - BEREAE) -

KPIA1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and .

BREMIEIZATS | steps taken to achieve them. Sggﬁnsa\gxi ;2?]
AT A0 HE R BB R R S B 1 el
FRE SR - FHRE)

KPIA1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-

BRETUEIZA16 | hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and Energy Saving and
steps taken to achieve them. Reducing Emission
HREEEERBEEEEMNGE - Kat BB R
PTETSLERRE B 1R R AE B35 L B R ATERER
BB o
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CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (R - HE@REAHRE)ABTES]
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

Aspect A2:

Use of Resources
EBEA2:

ERER

General Disclosure

—MR
Environmental
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and Protection
other raw materials. Energy Saving and
ERERER(BIEEIR - KREAMEME) HBE - Reducing Emission
RERE
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, B BE A B
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.
i BRUAREE  #7F - Bl BF BTREF-
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
BREMIEIZA2.1 | type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (KWh in
‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of Environmental
production volume, per facility). Performance
REAESNERERSEEER(IE - R REEX
Som) BFEE (A TETRRAE) REE (1
NEESBM - BIEREE)
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. Environmental
BREMIEIZA22 | per unit of production volume, per facility). Performance
%@%%7k§&%ﬂ‘§ (ZIDJ)XE%ETTL N IEEQ?JT/E Egiﬁza-:/;ﬁ
NS R SURE A
) o
KPIA2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) ,
BREMRIEIZA23 | setand steps taken to achieve them. EEn:;esrs%g ﬁ?{\ggﬁcat?fn
P BRI AN B R L AEDE s
b B RN SR - FReR
KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in .
BREMIEIZA2.4 | sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Energy Sawgg aﬂd
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to Em|ssp n Reduction
; Environmental
achieve them. Performance
HAUREGE A KR LRl AT g - AKAT FEAGE
FTST RO 3 B 1B R R EIE L B IR AR s 8

B FE

KPIA2.5 Total packaging material used for finished
BBERUEIZA25 | products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

KK mAABEM R EE (UEETE) k(0
HR)BEEBMGE -

The Group does not
involve the use of
packaging materials due
to the nature of business
HREBILE
AEENT R
BEMEEER
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CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (IRi%
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

(Continued)

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

CitERERE

R -itegREIRE]D )

AR kY ]

Aspect A3: General disclosure . | )
The Environment | — 5% Environmenta 'Protectlon
and Natural Energy Saving and
Resources Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the Redu;r;g {;ng;sswn
[EEA3 : environment and natural resources. gf M”;
RERRAER HEZBTAHBRRRARERENEAZEHNHEK 5
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of
R4 MIBIZA3.1 | activities on the environment and natural Energy Saving and
{ﬁzcr)nurces and the actions taken to manage Reducing Emission
. ParanP2V N
AR RE R A DR EAYE MR RE L
RERBRERGMTZENITE o
Aspect A4. General disclosure

Climate Change
EEA4:
RIREL

—R = Environmental Protection
Energy Saving and
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant impacts on the Reducing Emission
environment and natural resources. RFRE
Bl R EH BRI EHETAEEYENEARGEBEEDN B R
HR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related
B EBUEEZ A [ [ ' i .
BREBIEIEALT issues which have impacted, and those which Environmental
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
Performance
to manage them. @ ok
RIREN

HOBE R eWBRTAEEYENEXN
RIREBEEE - REXHTE -
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CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (R - HE@REAHRE)ABTES]
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

BERHFMEFER  BERET  THEEZ BY YIRS 21
1t~ REBARVA R Bt 158 K AR Al -

(@  thepolicies; and

B. Social Reference Section(s)
B. #& BEEH
Employment and Labour Practices

EBEREIER

Aspect B1: General Disclosure

Employment —R =

[E®EB1:

EfE Information on:

. Employment
@ B R Management
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a e
significant impact on the issuer

b BETHBETABEAZENEBERZRA

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BB R} o

KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type

BREMIEIEB1.1 | (for example, full- or part-time), age group Employment
and geographical region. Management
BUR - BEERE (WEBSRE) « Fied EREER
ARMES D ES B

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group

BREMIEIZB.2 | and geographical region. ,\E/gr?alg:g]tt

)}F_(o
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) continued)
BR HERELIBE(RER HEREIHRE]) @)

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (BB - idE€REALAEEABES|
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

Aspect B2: General Disclosure
Health and Safety | —f&#HE

[EmB2 :

REEZE Information on:

AAREZETERELREREEHCBELREN

(@)  thepolicies; and

@ BE:R Health and Safety

fEEEZ e

(b)y  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

b BTEBTABEAZENHEBERRRM

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

BB -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities

BRAEMIEIZEB2.1  |occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year. /
BE=F(AEERFE)BFEITHRMA
Bt E& o

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. /

BREMIEER22 |FAIBEEAIIERS -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety

A B R IZ B2,

BARRE BT B2.3 measures adopted, how they are Health and Safety
implemented and monitored. EERTR
Hih R A OB R B SR 245 0+ LA TR A SO
BHITRERFE -
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) continued)
BR HERELIGBE(HEER HEREIHRE]) @)

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (R - HE@REAHRE)ABTES]
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Aspect B3:
Development and
Training

EHEB3:
BRI

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

General Disclosure
—REE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
ERRAEE BT IERE M MERBAERBER - 3 EE MR o

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal
and external courses paid by the employer.
i BIEBEEY FIeRAaRENENAINBRE

Training and
Development
Bl EERE

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by

R4 MIEIZB3.1 | gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management). /
BEMRIRESEN(NSRERE HRER
E)EnmxillEERDL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per Training and

BB IR IR B3, .

FIREMIEIEB3.2 | employee by gender and employee category Development

RUERIREERRED  BRER KT
H)FIT BT o

SETI BB R
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) continued)
BR HERELIBE(RER HEREIHRE]) @)

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (R - HE@REAHRE)ABTES]
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

Aspect B4:
Labour Standards
[ETEB4 :

& T 2B

General Disclosure
—REE

Information on:;
B IEE Takag 4 ThY -

(@)  thepolicies; and
@ HE: K

(b)y  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
b BTEBTABEAZENHEBERRRM

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
HER: -

Lawful Labour
BESET

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review
BREMIEIZBA1  |employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

TR ST RSB Bl ey e e LA 2 E T K5k

Lawful Labour
BRST

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such
BHERIEIEBA.2 | practices when discovered.

M RRERBERRERA BB
B ER o

Lawful Labour
BEST
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) continued)
BR HERELIGBE(HEER HEREIHRE]) @)

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (R - HE@REAHRE)ABTES]

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING

(Continued)

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

Operating Practices

RIS A AIE1R B5.2

suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

i EBEREERNEDN  mERTER
BHMEEEEE UAREBRITRERA
% e

EEE
Aspect B5: General Disclosure
Supply Chain —RE
Management Supplier Management
EMB5 : Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply HERERE
HEEEE chain.
B RESERIRIE At & EBRIR o
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. /
RENIEIERS |REED R HEREE o
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging

Supplier Management
HEREIR

KPIB5.3
RIR A 515 B5.3

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

il AR HERSERSNRIERTE
RE BRI - LA RBREHITRERAE

Supplier Management
HEREIR

KPI B5.4
B ERIEIZEB5.4

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
SRR R % ARREm R
BHIER - ARIBBEHITRER A

Supplier Management
HEREE
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) (continued
BRE HERELIHE(EER - BFRELIEVE]D @

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (BB - idE€REALAEEABES|
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

Aspect Bé6: General Disclosure
Product —MREE
Responsibility
[EEB6 : Information on:
EmEE EUMREELNRENERELZS BS  BEERLEBZEEUR
R E -
(@)  thepolicies; and
@ BE:R Legal Operation
BRES

(b)y  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
b BTEBTABEAZENHEBERRRA

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

HER: -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
BREMIEIZB6.1 | subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons. /
EEXCEXEMBEH TR EEFRER
EE GER
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related
RS 4EMIEIZB6.2 | complaints received and how they are dealt
with. /
EREREMRBRBNIRFHEARELSS
& o
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing

BB MIBIEB6.3 | and protecting intellectual property rights. Legal Operation

EETNN N = auh I Ne:d & \E =

A TR S R T B - ARER

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and

BREMIEIZB6.4 | recall procedures. /
B ERTRERERLSIET

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and

BREMIEIZB6.5 | privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.

BB EEERMRERALRBEE - UARIEHE
MITRERF X -

Legal Operation
BREZ
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) continued)
BR HERELIGBE(HEER HEREIHRE]) @)

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (BB - idE€REALAEEABES|
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

Aspect B7: General Disclosure
Anti- corruption | — R E
[EEB7 :
RES Information on:
B ILERE  $F - SEFRERER
EZ; tﬁ%ﬁmlges; and Professional Ethics
' BEEE
(b)y  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
b BTEBTABEAZENHEBERRRM
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
HER: -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding
BREMIEIZB7.1 | corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period Professional Ethics
and the outcomes of the cases. BREE
REBRAAHETAIEESREVE RS
HEITRARFREE RFAER
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and
MASENUEIEB7.2 | whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored. /
g iE b R R RIET - ARBBARITR
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training . .
RIRHEAUERRB7.3 | provided to directors and staff. Profeﬂ;‘s%gléthlcs
imESRE TRENRESE -
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report (“ESG Report”) continued)
BR HERELIBE(RER HEREIHRE]) @)

CONTENT INDEX FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL, (R - HE@REAHRE)ABTES]
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING (%)

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER  EE —REEREREXES

EEIREMHAER(MERIKE) -

Community Reference Section(s)
HE BEEH
Aspect BS8: General Disclosure
community —RE
Investment
[ETEBS : Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the Caring for Community
HERE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities R LE
take into consideration the communities” interests.
BN ER2ERTREENEMHERENBREXLEHEEE
M F AR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
IR WIEIZ RS, ' . .
BERUEIEBS.1 | environmental concerns, labour needs, Caring for Community
health, culture, sport). W
EIERER(HE BREEE BI1IF -
kR Xk - 8BE) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to
BREMRIEIZBS.2  |the focus area. /
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B|IAZMENRE

&4 A=t R AT R TR 4]
HLM CPA LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Room 1501-08, 15th Floor, Tai Yau Building,
181 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
AR EAT I FOE 1819

KA KA 154#1501-08€

Tel & 3%:(852) 3103 6980

Fax 1% £ :(852) 3104 0170

E-mail ‘& #: info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF NOVA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NOVA Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 101 to 259, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA”") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

HABREEERARARARR
(RESHSFMAK L2 BERAA])

R

EEDERHENEINBEETF29E 7 #H %
EBRERERAR(EAR]) RENEB QA
(GiEA BEE]) 2EAVHHRE 81
R-ZE-—FXNAZ+THZHEATBRREK
RBEZBLEFEZRABEREMEEK
TmR HAEREHRREABRERER
UREATEREMN T BREEZESFECR
BE o

R BEVBHRRCRET LG
([BRETMAE]) R 2B EH R
SEA([EBMBREER D EEMA i
Rt BEEER-_T=_—F A=THZ&K
BB NRBEZBILFEZHE MR
RRHGEEHESRE W EREBLQAIK
Bl 2 MBHREZ RS

% 48

fF > Dh
id

BRzER

EEEREFESAMASHRMOEBERT
ERN([EBETER ) ETES - BEHEZ
FEATAENETEERNREZBREMAE
HRA MR BEREZ AT P IEE—
SR - HRELGMASRHEZEXS
stEnERSTRI(AD  BFBURN 8%
B WEETTRIFHEMEREREL -
BERE BEMEGNETREETER
HEEWREFNENERIRHER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BIXBENEE 2

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

MEEIER

REBESNEXAE  BREBFFTE/ESF
BERAFERAMBERRIETREZNE
He WERREESHEBEREREAMER
REFULTRE AR ETRENER - BF
ETenRERREHEBNER

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of goodwiill
BEZ B EE

As set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recorded the balance of
goodwill amounting to approximately
HK$240,450,000.

WAER A SRR MFE19TE - ESESRGHEL
#249 240,450,000 7T ©

The management had made an assessment of the
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units

("CGUs") allocated to the goodwill to ascertain that —

their carrying amounts did not exceed their
recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts of
the CGUs were determined based on the value-in-use
calculation by an independent professional valuer.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on
financial forecasts covering a three-year period, with
reference to discount rates, market conditions and
other relevant factors.

EREECHIEEHB HeEAEMN((REELE
Byl rJ RS EELTME - WEEER@EL KR
BEEAKESE REELEEMN 2AIREESEE
MEVEXHEMZBEAEAEFEET - HER
ERAMAFEDERSZMIAEX - Rk EAE
MR =2 = FHIBEBTEA -

ELETETRNNEERRETSHE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:
EENEREAERE 2 RENERRZ BIEF
2ECE

evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer,;
A ERM  FEBIE - B MR

discussing with and challenging the valuer on
the valuation methodologies, assumptions and
key estimates used in the valuation;

HfLER N RYE R EEMR 2 EERE - &R
"REBMEE

reviewing the consistency of cash flow
projections with management’s assumptions
and the economic environment in which the
Group operates. We had also evaluated the
impact of COVID-19 considered by the
management in the assumptions for the next
fiscal year and the reasonableness of the
estimate,
FREeREBARTHERERER &S
EREMESERR - - EFNEOHRERE
R T —HMBFEREFFIEECOVID- 1982
MAEETH & B M ETTR M
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B XBENEE 2

Key audit matter

HAEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EEETENBNMEEBRETSE

We identified the impairment review in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” in relation to
the Group’s goodwill as a key audit matter due to the
quantum of the carrying value of goodwill and the
Group's assessment of the recoverable amounts is
usually based on the future performance of the
business which is subject to a number of
uncertainties (e.g. forecasted revenue, COVID-19
impact on future cash flows, expectations of market
developments) and the discount rates applied to the
future cash flow forecast which involves significant
management assumption, judgements and estimates.
EERBBEEEGTTEAER EEREIYH &
SEEREBETHRESHEENAARENSTE R
ArmEZsFEaErcTEk BESEFETHREEE
TBEEREBHARKR (AR ZEBIEEREM
F& BRI - COVID- 198 R KRB & REN T
2 mipEREN REREARRRSRETEAAA
WE  BERIREREEERE - HE KRG -

94

assessing the sensitivity of the forecasts to
change in assumptions, specifically the discount
rate used in the model, to assess the
appropriateness of the carrying amounts of
goodwill;

FHETERAERRES cHRE(LAREAR
FRARIRE) UM EBZEEERSRE ¢

assessing whether the allocation of goodwill to
their respective CGUs are reasonable; and
AEEESEERERBZRSELENESR
BEE: &

obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of assessing the recoverable amounts
of CGUs and their value-in-use.
THRERENGEREEESEM 2T KREEE R
HERBEZIERF -

We considered that the judgement and assumptions
made by management in its impairment assessment
for goodwill was supportable by available evidences
and information.

FERE BEEEBUHHEETREN GIELZ HE

LEBREHRBIENEHOS -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BIXBENEE 2

Key audit matter

HAEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EEETENBNMEEBRETSE

Impairment assessment of factoring
receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables

REEWE HEERSEREKRENZHEFF
1

As set out in Notes 23, 24 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has factoring
receivables, lease receivables, loan receivables and
allowance for credit losses of approximately
HK$354,059,000, HK$79,144,000, HK$21,523,000 and
HK$561,000 (2020:HK$358,195,000, HK$80,360,000,
HK$Nil and HK$559,000), respectively as at 30 June
2021. The assessment of the expected credit 10ss
("ECL") for these financial assets required the
management’s significant judgements and involved
high level of estimation uncertainty. It includes key
assumptions such as probabilities of default rates,
expected recovery rates from loss given default and
forward-looking information specific to the debtors
and macroeconomic environment.
BUERE IS RAMFE23 - 24 R25F1E - HE-T
ZT—FRA=TH - ESENREBEKIEHE
EWHIE FRERXRLEEEEEBI AR
354,059,000 7T * 79,144,0007% JT ~ 21,523,000% 7T
K.561,0007% 7o ( = T = & F : 358,195,000/ T *
80,360,000 7T ~ TE 7T 5 559,000 7T ) » #H bz %
TREENTEREEFE((HHEEBR]) ZXE
BEEHERAE RS RS ENGEFT T REN - K
BREBRRFR  OINEONE  BHRTEENEE
BB E R EEBARZBLBERENAEEER
¥} o

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of factoring receivables, lease
receivables and loan receivables included:
ZERABRIEEKRIE HERWFERERE
R BERHE 2 BHEFBE

— assessing the overall operating effectiveness of
key controls over the design and
implementation which govern the internal credit
control, debt collections, recording and
monitoring of the ECLs on the factoring
receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables;

FTAE R AT R B i R ST e B RSB E A A
ZEEGREANBEAES - WEER - Lk
N EEVRRIBEURIE - TS RUGRIE R EWE
RETEREEETE

assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
models, reasonableness of key assumptions
and inputs used by the management in
estimating the ECLs;
FMEESMEEEREEANEE L - BRERE
STTEHE E BB AN R R R L ABE
e

testing whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk, or a sample of exposures that was
subject to impairment assessment, when
categorising into different stages of default on
factoring receivables, lease receivables and
loan receivables,

FARIB IR - THE EKHIE KB E TS
HATRENEERR  ARGEERREETEE
B XEEABETRHEN G RERERR
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B XBENEE 2

Key audit matter

HAEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EEETENBNMEEBRETSE

We identified the impairment assessment of factoring
receivables, lease receivables and loan receivables
as a key audit matter because of the management’s
significant judgements and high level of estimation
uncertainty involved in the development and
implementation process of the ECL models and the
carrying amounts involved are significant to the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
FEOBRIBRERKFIE - 15 R WRIE R ERE R
ZREFNEENRERESFE  BHEREHRE
HEEREBEEARIREREERAEB RS ENG
ATREMEARAEREEY E5£EEEMBHRE
BEKX -

96

reviewing ageing analysis of factoring
receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables prepared by management of the
Company and discussing with the management
of the Company whether the amounts are
recoverable on a sample basis;
RHMEEERN BEQAREEEREMNRIERE
WOskIE - 108 WGRIE R B E R 2 BRIk D
W BERREERENREEFIELER
s

— examining the management’s estimation on the
ECL of individual balances on sample basis and
the expected loss rate of each category group
and evaluating the basis and factors used in the
estimation to the appropriateness of the
management’s identification of significant
increase in credit risk, defaults and credit
impaired receivables;
EHMEREERSEREH MM EHRETNTELD
EEBEGALRGRANNTEREEE - I
FHEEET R EANEEREE - AFHEERRE
HiEERREZIEMN  EOLEREEREDN
JEMCHRIAH) BRIV EE 1T

recalculating the amount of impairment losses
for receivables; and
B ERRFEREBESRE &

checking subsequent settlement of receivables
on a sample basis.
BRMEEERTRYGRIENHEEEER

we considered that the judgement and assumptions
made by management in its impairment assessment
for factoring receivables, lease receivables and loan
receivables were supportable by available evidences
and information.

EERE - BEERREEUGIE HERWKIEA
KW EFORE R LT EL B H T R RERE2RE
BRELEEHXH -
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

BIRBEERE &)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

2020/215FF3R o

Hfttis 2

HERAREFAHEMERAE - RMESE
EHENFRAZEE  BEIEREAME
BREREF 2 ZBEHRS

EEHGRAMBRRCBERY MREEME
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IWESFHREMBERRZBAME  BF
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HAFS SR MER Z EASRBIMATE 2R
%WTEE°

ERERAMBEHRERE  EFRENE B

SESEEE 28 WREAER T HE
HEREEEARER  URERKELE
RERTER - RIFESFEK SREAS
AT IR -SRI 2N EE M ER 2B
RAE -

SEZMBHmERE -

ABREEEZEREBRLAA 97



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BIRBEERE &)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

BIXBENEE 2

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BIRBEERE &)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ho Pak Tat

Practising Certificate Number: P05215
Hong Kong

28 September 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FefRaRAMZEKE R

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

—FRA=THLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Revenue g 7 228,069 551,112
Cost of sales HEKAR (107,109) (265,938)
Gross profit E£H 120,960 285,174
Other income HA A 8 8,543 27,674
Other gains and losses Hib ez R EE 9 (26,353) (45,947)
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets at AT EAABZ ([RAFE
fair value through profit or loss FPABR]) CEREEY
("FVTPL") (&B18),/ W= T8 9 (17,976) 8,679
Net gain on change in fair value of B AREATEZE 2
contingent consideration payables Wz S 9 914 97,465
Impairment losses under expected BHEEBEBEREAET 2
credit loss model, net of reversal HEEE (MRER) 10 28,914 (38,186)
Selling expenses HERY (14,562) (25,830)
Administrative expenses TEAX (43,695) (60,821)
Operating profit RERR 56,745 248,208
Finance costs R IDEN 11 (21,057) (37,988)
Profit before tax BB A 28 R 9 35,688 210,220
Taxation TE 12 (41,135) (68,050)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FB),/HF (5,447) 142,170
Other comprehensive income/ Hitt2EBA /(%)
(expenses)
Items that may be subsequently TREZEHSEZTEEZ
reclassified to profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences on translation ~ #E BN EKES 2
of foreign operations BN Z5E 54,681 (23,109)
Release of exchange reserve upon PHEWB R R
disposal of subsidiaries FRBRIE KR (1,070) @)
Release of exchange reserve upon i = LN NGIL
deregistration of subsidiaries FRIREE LR (1,627) -
Other comprehensive income/ FEEMZEERA(FAX)
(expenses) for the year 51,984 (23,111)
Total comprehensive income FEXHBARE
for the year 46,537 119,059
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continueg)
GFeEReEREMZEKER 7

For the year ended 30 June 2021

HE—_Z—

—FERA=THLEFE

2021 2020
—E--F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Loss)/profit for the year UTATEEEE
attributable to: (B18), /&%
Owners of the Company ZAUNCIEZEUN (822) 137,097
Non-controlling interests Sl g (4,625) 5,073
(5,447) 142,170
Total comprehensive income/ UFALtEEFERZE
(expenses) for the year WA (BAx%) % :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NCIE =P 51,162 114,044
Non-controlling interests AR A A (4,625) 5,015
46,537 119,059
(Loss)/earnings per share RAREEAEEER
attributable to owners of (E518) BR :
the Company:
Basic (HK cents) EARGENW) 15 (0.05) 9.30
Diluted (HK cents) BEGE) 15 (0.05) 9.30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BEKTHTEE R TR A MR R 2 AARKEE )
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At 30 June 2021

consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBKALE

R-ZE-—_—FXA=1+H

2021 2020
—E--F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FAET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MR 16 1,767 3,593
Right-of-use assets FEHEEE 17 3,463 7,155
Intangible assets B EE 18 2,210 14,291
Goodwill PEES 19 240,450 276,397
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABRZEHEE 27 = 24,581
Factoring receivables RIEB Y IR 23 33,142 66,627
Lease receivables HE R FIE 2/ 30,248 56,974
Prepayment and deposits BNRIERES 26 442 14,525
Deferred tax assets EREFIBEE 21 809 805
312,531 464,948
Current assets REBEE
Inventories "Ee 3,991 5,755
Trade receivables B Z MR 22 48,814 178,868
Factoring receivables RIEEUWGRIE 23 320,917 291,568
Lease receivables HE R FIE 24 48,896 23,386
Loan receivables FEUE R 25 21,523 -
Prepayments, deposits and BNRIE  Rek
other receivables Hh e Y g 26 53,306 26,407
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABZZEHEE 27 1,950 29,007
Income tax receivables FEW RIS 1,135 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEEHR 28 69,059 137,431
569,591 692,422
Current liabilities hREBaE
Trade payables B ZER IR 29 8,611 58,590
Receipts in advance TBU IR 30 4,252 4,144
Contract liabilities BRAE 31 4,360 36,616
Accruals, deposits received and [EETER  EWRe M
other payables HoAth JE 1 5RI8 33 8,578 20,119
Lease liabilities HEBE 32 1,311 6,702
Contingent consideration payables — FEfTS AR (E 34 - 6,105
Corporate bonds NGIlig= 35 65,813 306,702
Income tax payables JER ST 2,852 8,990
95,777 447,968
Net current assets RBEEFR 473,814 244,454
Total assets less current liabilities #EERGHEE 786,345 709,402
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
FEeMERAIE &

At30June2021 M-—TE=——%,"A=1+H

2021 2020
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Contract liabilities R M= 31 61 1,968
Lease liabilities HEBE 32 2,415 709
Contingent consideration payables — JEfsiARE 34 - 3,506
Corporate bonds NAElEH 35 952 5,566
3,428 11,749
NET ASSETS EEFH 782,917 697,653
Capital and reserves EERRREE
Share capital &N 37 3,712 3,044
Reserves s 779,205 689,437
Equity attributable to owners FARER AELER
of the Company 782,917 692,481
Non-controlling interests FEE i - 5,172
TOTAL EQUITY BES 782,917 697,653

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 t0 259 S$101BEEF 2598 VG A B MAMES
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of @R _-_Z=——F N A -+ /\BHbERKET]
Directors on 28 September 2021 and are signed on its behalf % > WHNU TEERAEE :

by:

Deng Zhonglin Wwong Yuk Lun Alan
BB 4 % EEB
Director Director
EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these — BEMIMI IS 45E IS mE 2 AREH o
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEREDX

For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HE-ZE——F XA=FTHILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ANAREARR

Convertible
bonds/ Share Non-
Share Share notes option  Statutory  Exchange Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings interests equity

ThRfES/ BRE
RftEE  REGR i e EXfR  AtBE  REER & ehEs 2 1
HKS1000 HKS 00 HK$1000 | HKS1000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TEL ST TR (0 B ThL TRL i) TRL TR

A1y 2019 RZF-nEtA-A 2926 366,578 104 63,606 14,744 (16,634) 09 107,998 546,866 4,168) 542,698
Proftfor the year EEaf| - - - - - - - 137,097 137,097 503 01
Other comprenensive expenses  EE A2 ERR

for the year,net oftax (MRE) - - - - - (2305 - - (3053 59) B

Total comprehensive icome/ - EE2EMA/(HR)
(expenses) for the year 4% - - - - - (23053 - 137097 114,00 5015 19059

Recognition of equity-setted B BREERDHZ

share-based payments - - - 14,864 - - - - 14,864 - 14,864
Share options lapsed during the year EEE %M ZE%MRE - - - (14614) - - - 14414 - - -
Issue of convertible bond/note Y akEs/ 25 - - 9,682 - - - - - 9682 - 9,682
Conversion of convertble Bondinotes E T #kfE% /25 118 97481 (17429) - - - - - 80,170 - 80,170
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries Rk ENEBA TR ER - - - - - - - - - 435 435
Dividend paid BfkE - - - - - - - (73.145) (73.145) - (73,45)
Transfer to statutory reserve SRTERRE - - - - 8319 - - 6319 - - -

Mg 00and 1uly2020  R-E-FFRAZTA

R=2-%5tA-A 3044 464059 - 63856 2,063 (39.687) 09 180,245 692481 51 697,633
Loss for e year FEEE - - - - - - - (822) (822) (4,625) (5,447)
Other comprehensieincome/ 2 @R/ (B0 -
(expenses):
Bchange dfferences arsngon~ RSN ERBELH

translgtion of forelgn operations ~ EEEE o ° - - - 54,681 - - 54,681 - 54,681
Release of exchange reverseupon A EXBATE

(lisposal of subsidiaries - - - - - (1,070) - - (1,070) - (1,070)
Release of exchange reverse upon

Ceregistration of subsiciaries BRELEE - - - - - (1,627) - - (1,627) - (1,627)
Total comprefiensive income/ FERENA/(F3R)

(expenses for the year et - - - - - 51984 - (822) 51,162 (4,625) 46,531
Plcing of heres ) 55 3579 - - - - - - AT
Issue of convertble notes BImARSE - - 66,591 - - - - - 66,591 - 66,591
Conversionof convertble notes BT ERES 8 5,485 (66,591) - - - - - (61,023) - (61,023)
Share option lapsed during the year - EAB SR E = = = (a2,711) = = = Qm = = =
Release upon disposal of subsiciaries R HERBATRER = - - - (554) = = - (554) (547) (1,101)
Release upon deregisrationof — REEHBATERL

subsidiaries - - - = (3,003) - 99 = (2,904 = (2,904)
Transfer to statutory resene ERTERRRE - - - - 3,651 - - (3,651) - - -
A3 ne 20 HoET-ERASTR 8T 50618 - onms a1 W - U R -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these — BEMIH TR Z 4R A BTG HRER 2 AERER D -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
o=k ¥=3 3 I E €D

For the year ended 30 June 2021 #HE-ZE——F XA=F+HILFE

Notes:

(@)

(b)

106

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of operations that have
functional currency other than Hong Kong dollars which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the difference between the Group’s share
of nominal value of the paid-up capital of the subsidiary acquired over
the Group's cost of acquisition of the subsidiary under common control
upon completion of reorganisation on 3 October 2013.

e

(@)

(b)

A

X REBERENETIAINEE REEE 2
B2 BEREMELEZMBELZE  CER
AN BMARMEIME R BORERIE

Hb it

HiFBER - —=F+A=HxKEARSE
S E DG PR A BB BN (B AN R [
WS KRS Z B A B 2 AT 2 288 -
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeEHERER

For the year ended 30June 2021 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

2021 2020
—B--F —ETTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TART FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R EE
Profit before tax B A A 35,688 210,220
Adjustments for: FATEBELRAR
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREETE
plant and equipment 16 1,903 1,894
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {FREEENE 17 6,679 8,191
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEHE 18 5,140 10,561
Write-off of property, WEE - MR R H
plant and equipment 9 9 84
Net exchange (gains)/l0sses X (W), BEFE 9 (6,204) 634
Net loss/(gain) on financial assets BATEFABREREE
at FVTPL BB/ (W) 8 9 17,976 (8,679)
Interest income FLEBA 8 (163) (456)
Interest expenses F SR 11 21,057 37,988
Net gain on change in ERNSZAREBATEES
fair value of contingent Wz F5E
consideration payables 34 (914) (97,465)
Gain on derecognition of subsidiaries 4 |- &R B A 7 2 Wz 9 (4,630) ¥)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB ATz (Wzs), BE 9 (2,412) 2,818
Gain on derecognition of lease RIFEREE 2 s 9 (225) (257)
Gain on early redemption of RPERQARES 2 W
corporate bonds 9 (9,040) -
Loss on non-substantial RAVEHIFEKNIER 2 BB
modification of corporate bond 9 12,908 -
Impairment loss on goodwill EERERBE 9 35,947 38,144
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & & 2 R EEE 9 - 4,520
Impairment losses under HHEEEERRXET 2
expected credit loss model, WEEE (MRERE)
net of reversal 10 (28,914) 38,186
Equity-settled share-based R EERM I HAL
payment expenses 9 = 14,864
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
FeBanERE)

For the year ended 30June 2021 HEZT-_—FA=t+HIEFE

2021 2020
—E--F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Operating cash flows before HEEREHR KL
movement in working capital ReRE 84,805 261,251
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERL/(Em) 2,267 (3,710)
Decrease/(increase) in trade L 5 EWEIER D,/ (1E0)
receivables 180,817 (51,807)
Decrease/(increase) in factoring RIBREURIER A/ (#h0)
receivables 38,106 (63,703)
Decrease/(increase) in lease RErkEZERD, /()
receivables 8,904 (81,332
Increase in loan receivables U & FOE (21,559) -
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  TEFTFRIE - R & H i EU
deposits and other receivables FImgm), md (20,337) 30,064
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables & 5 &N EIE CFi) /€0 (54,329) 33,435
(Decrease)/increase in receipts in AU IE ORi) /&
advance (289) 1,724
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & #1& & (Ri4»),/ 120 (34,939) 16,979
Decrease in accruals, deposits EETER  EliRe Rk
received and other payables Hin R (11,123) (8,046)
Cash generated from operations REEF 2R 172,323 134,855
Tax paid EERE (47,808) (89,424)
Net cash generated from RETHEE RS TFHE
operating activities 124,515 45,431
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
FeBanERE)

For the year ended 30June 2021 HEZT-_—FA=+HIEFE

2021 2020
—E--F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH
Interest received BUFH B 8 163 456
Purchase of property, BEDE  BEER
plant and equipment 16 (217) (872)
Proceeds from disposal of HEFLEMBREREE Y
unlisted investment fund FTiSRIE - 30,000
Purchase of equity securities BERBS LT 2 REFS
listed in Hong Kong - (20,049)
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEREE L2 RIEESZ
securities listed in Hong Kong {35018 9,081 2,004
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on HEWBARZHEE
disposal of subsidiaries RA (R 58 38 29,385 (99)
Net cash generated from RETBHELE RS FHE
investing activities 38,412 11,440
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
Capital element of lease ERNHERE CEARFD
rentals paid (6,456) (7,671)
Interest element of lease BENEERE ZFEEHH
rentals paid (487) (1,428)
Dividends paid to owners of BERTEARARBEEAZKRE
the Company = (73,145)
Issue of shares by placing BREESHEBTRMG 37,164 -
Interest paid BERFIE (27,565) (45,575)
Redemption of corporate bonds ~ BEARIES 35 (242,000) -
Net cash used in financing METBFAZRETE
activities (239,344) (127,819)
NET DECREASE IN CASHAND H4eRBELZEERRY FEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS (76,417) (70,948)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe F#2R& KRG EEERE
beginning of the year 137,431 212,951
Effect of foreign currency INEEREH) 2 B
exchange rate changes 8,045 (4,572)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Xz RE kB L EEHIER
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 28 69,059 137,431
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS MEHRERME

For the year ended 30 June 2021

110

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and is
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong has been changed from Suites 911-912, Level 9,
One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong to Room
2102, 21/F., Tower One, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway,
Hong Kong since 24 May 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
20.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. In addition, the functional
currencies of certain group entities that operate outside
Hong Kong are determined based on the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the group
entities operate. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand, unless otherwise stated.

BE-T-—F/A=tAILFE

—REH

ARAREBEREHESAREATERSR
SAMKLAEREERAR IR
BEABERSGFMBR AR ([HERF])
£ o NRFIRFE IS & Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands R AR R 2 BB E EE EHE
BEE-E-_—FRA-t+UHERSE
B EESR AL ESH —EIEI-
MEFNRELSEBEIRNEF
—FE211E 2102 F o

RAFRREERRDF - HHB R A
ZEBRGENME20

MEMBHRRABT(EBT)IIE
MBI RARE ZIEEER « 1L
BB EZETEBER 2
EURBEZEEERKEMEZTE
RERFECERETE BRBHEAE
S TEBEABRAZESREIZ TR
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 July 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Impact of COVID-19 on Related
Rent Concessions

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
Statements.

iﬁﬂ%(fﬁiﬁ

RAFECBFHERZERMHK
HEEL 28R
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=B CEAEAEEGSHAEAN
EHERE _E_TF LA —H%ZE
FI6H) F E Bif 58 B £ 2 BB 1%
WMEEANBSEENRAZBITRT
PIE B BEREER 2 BT

BREHEMEIVRLEE BAUNTESR
SEHERIE 85 (BF])

BB RS EA ESTioheE
F35% (&3])

BERMBREENEIF - FIREENE
BB EERFE %R

BB R &R
F7% (B3T)

EAMBREERNF 1658 COVID-19 4 4H
(1&31) BHEEER
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0%

RAFEEAEEYHRE LR
ERNRA ZEFTHAKRERAFEE
RBEFEzHBRRAREER, 3
LEGAVBBRRAMA 2 BELES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
MEMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021

112

HE_Z—

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue

but not yet effective

The following new and amendments to HKFRSs have
been issued but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group in preparing these

consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice

Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSS

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 20212

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020)*

Disclosure of
Accounting Policies*

Definition of
Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single
Transaction®
Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?
Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-2020°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2.

AEEUMEBEREEN([TE
SR ) 87T (&)

~

C S8 A B 15 R 4 2 7 R] & B
B EE R EERT (@)

! R —F—-A-BxZ2RRAKBZFE

AR AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 2 NI —FNA—BR2ERIRZFE
AR AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 3 RIE-_—F—A—HZ2EHABRZFE
AR AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 ¢ RZZEZ=F—A—BAR2ERBRZFE
AR AR

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 5 RET HEIS 2 18 5tA 2 FE M AR

determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment ("HKFRS 2"), leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases
("HKFRS 16"), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value-in-
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
iNputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technigue is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE®IHE &)

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued) MEEE (&)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value AN I BHREME - A FEFE

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee,

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or 10ss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between () the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“"HKFRS 9") or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
ajoint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 July 2020, the Group can elect to apply
an optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is
not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets.

The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of
the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.
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For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEgBE®E)
(Continued)
Business combinations EBE6t

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or 10ss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes (“HKAS 12") and HKAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date;

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments
(as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except
for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within
12 months of the acquisition date; or (b) the
underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after reassessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair
value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arises from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or 10ss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEgBE®E)
(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued) E¥BE6tE)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGU(s)") (or groups of CGUS) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwiill (continued)

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of CGUSs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU
within the group of CGUSs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a group
of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of
the CGU (or the group of CGUSs) retained.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purpose are stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Over the lease terms
10%-33%

20%-50%

20%

Leasehold improvements
Computer equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or 10ss.
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Intangible assets BEERE
Intangible assets acquired separately THBAZELEE

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.
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Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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HE_Z—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, is recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the asset belongs. In addition, the Group assesses
whether there is indication that corporate assets may
be impaired. If such indication exists, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-
in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUS,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGU, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGU.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment l0ss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value-in-use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of CGU. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or l0ss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGU)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment 10ss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGU) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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HE_Z—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financials
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEgBE®E)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR THE#E)
Financial assets SREE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e  The contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e  The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e  The contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
("HKFRS 3") applies.
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BHE_Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

It has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

On initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

It is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEgBE®E)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR THE#E)
Financial assets (Continued) SREE(E)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “net
(loss)/gain on financial assets at FVTPL” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, factoring receivables, lease receivables,
loan receivables and cash and cash equivalents) which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experiences, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables under simplified approach. The ECL on
these receivables are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances.

For all other financial instruments, including factoring
receivables, loan receivables and lease receivables, the
Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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BHE_ZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor,

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 180 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 240 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
iS more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower,

(b)y a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
an impairment allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEgBE®E)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ST HEZE)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments SHEERRBATA
Classification as debt or equity S BES A n

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a group entity are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the
financial liabilities is contingent consideration that may
be paid by an acquirer as part of a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or 10ss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, instead, they
are transferred to retained earnings upon derecognition
of the financial liability.

Convertible bonds/convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible bonds/convertible notes) issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities
and equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is subsequently recorded as a liability on
an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
REMBEHRERMEE o)

For the year ended 30 June 2021 &EZE—Z—_—F A=THIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEgBE®E)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ST HEZE)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments SHEERRAIA(E)

(Continued)

Convertible bonds/convertible notes (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of
income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. When the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible
bond, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to retained earnings. No gain or 0SS is
recognised in profit or 10ss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds/convertible notes are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly in
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds/convertible notes using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables,
accruals, deposits received and other payables and
corporate bonds) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a
financial liability with substantially different terms as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
or a part of it (whether or not attributable to the
financial difficulty of the Group) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such
exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities" original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining
term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the
date of modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEgBE®E)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR THE#E)
Derivative financial instruments fTEE€mIT A

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or 10ss is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain
financial asset hosts within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
not separated. The entire hybrid contract is classified
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and subsequently measured in its entirety as either Ho. BEEBEAANETOBIRNE R
amortised cost or fair value as appropriate. ?ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁk$iﬁi£ﬂ?@(yu B)itE -
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts R EBWIERBIHERE EJ%%)T

that are not financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single
instrument that are separated from the host contracts
are treated as a single compound embedded derivative
unless those derivatives relate to different risk
exposures and are readily separable and independent
of each other.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
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Net realisable value represents the estimated selling NI R EATENGAEBRINA
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completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash on hand,
cash at bank and other financial institutions which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Except for granting of a licence that is distinct from
other promised goods or services, control is transferred
over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of
following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEgBE®E)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers BRSO (&)

(Continued)

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the Group’s
promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a
right to access the Group's intellectual property if all of
the following criteria are met:

e the contract requires, or the customer reasonably
expects, that the Group will undertake activities
that significantly affect the intellectual property to
which the customer has rights;

e the rights granted by the licence directly expose
the customer to any positive or negative effects of
the Group's activities; and

. those activities do not result in the transfer of a
good or a service to the customer as those
activities occur.

